
 
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about 
Township Information 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, March 2, 2020 

7:00 PM 
  

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CITIZENS INPUT  
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 18, 2020, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
 

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS 

a. State College Borough Water Authority 
b. Centre Region COG Sustainability Presentation 
c. Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Annual Presentation 

 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

1. Center Region Comprehensive Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan Municipal Comments 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consent Agenda 
2. Public Hearing – DCNR Grant Application Resolution 
3. Proclamation – National Groundwater Awareness Week 
4. Authorization – Ferguson Township Salary Study Engagement Letter 
5. Workforce Housing Ordinance Amendment Discussion 
6. Appointments to Township Authorities, Boards and Commissions 
7. Draft Special Events Policy Amendment 
8. Board Member Request – Employer Paid Sick Leave 

 
VII. REPORTS 

1. COG Committee Reports  
2. Other Regional Reports 
3. Staff Reports 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – MARCH 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, March 2, 2020 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CITIZEN’S INPUT 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. February 18, 2020, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
IV. SPECIAL REPORTS          30 minutes 

1. State College Borough Water Authority – Ford Stryker 
2. Regional Sustainability Presentation – Pam Adams, COG Sustainability Coordinator 
3. Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Annual Presentation – Ron Seybert, Township Engineer 

 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
1. REVIEW OF BOARD COMMENTS ON THE CENTRE REGION COMPREHENSIVE 

PARKS, RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACE PLAN    10 minutes 
 

Narrative 
On February 18th, the Board discussed the final draft of the Centre Region Comprehensive Parks, 
Recreation, and Open Space Plan. Written comments from the municipalities will be incorporated into an 
appendix of the plan and are due to the COG Executive Director by Tuesday, March 17th.  Provided with 
the agenda is a draft letter from Dave Pribulka, Township Manager summarizing the comments provided 
on February 18th.  The Board is asked to provide any additional comments or corrections to the draft letter 
and authorize the submission of the letter. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct the Township Manager to forward its 
comments on the Centre Region Comprehensive Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan to the COG 
Executive Director. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors direct the Manager to forward its comments on the Parks Comprehensive 
Plan to the COG Executive Director. 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA  5 minutes 

a. Revised Award of Contract 2019-C15, Street Tree Pruning:  $17,264.00 
b. Award of Contract 2020-C19, Traffic Signal Detection Upgrades:  $190,418.00 
c. Donation Request – Ferguson Township Senior Citizens 
d. 2018-ADMIN / 2019-C32d (Fire) pay application 3:  $4,500.00 
e. 2018-ADMIN / 2019-C32e (Plumbing) pay application 3:  $1,817.28 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, March 2, 2020 
Page 2 
 

f. 2018-ADMIN / 2019-C32b (HVAC) pay application 4:  $41,978.65 
g. 2018-ADMIN / 2019-C32a (General) pay application 4:  $89,807.40 
h. 2018-ADMIN / 2019-C32a (General) pay application 5:  $15,063.00 
i. Board Member Request – O.W. Houts Property 

 
2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, 

CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND 
NATURAL RESOURCES COMMUNITY CONSERVATION PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM 
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF PHASE 1A OF SUBURBAN PARK.  10 minutes 

 
Narrative 
The Board budgeted $75,000 in its 2020 Operating Budget and $325,000 in the Capital Improvement 
Program Budget in 2021 for the development of Phase 1a of Suburban Park. The Township intends to 
pursue a grant from the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Community 
Conservation Partnerships Program for fifty percent of the estimated construction cost of the phase.  If 
approved, grant funding would match dollars from the Township and the University Area Joint Authority 
to redesign the drainageway that bisects the park; install a perimeter walking path; construct a pavilion; 
and other associated site improvements.  Funding this year will be used to design the drainageway 
improvements, and conduct a floodplain study and associated Letter of Map Revision revising the 
floodplain boundaries established by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  A copy of 
the rendering of the master plan as adopted in 2019 has been included with the agenda, along with the 
resolution required by DCNR for submission with the grant application.  
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the submittal of 
a grant application to the Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Community 
Conservation Partnerships Program for the development of Phase 1a of Suburban Park. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution. 

 
3. PROCLAMATION – NATIONAL GROUNDWATER AWARENESS WEEK 10 minutes 

 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of a proclamation designating the week of March 8th to be 
Groundwater Awareness Week in Ferguson Township.  This is the second year the Board is being asked 
to consider the proclamation, and it is congruent with the celebration of National Groundwater Awareness 
Week.  If adopted, staff will advertise the proclamation on its website and promote resources provided 
by the National Groundwater Association.  
 
Recommended motion:   That the Board of Supervisors proclaim the week of March 8th to be Groundwater 
Awareness Week in Ferguson Township. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the proclamation. 

 
4. AUTHORIZATION OF AN ENGAGEMENT LETTER TO CONDUCT AN UPDATED 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP SALARY STUDY     10 minutes 
 
Narrative 
The Board appropriated $20,000 in the 2020 Operating Budget to conduct an updated salary study for 
employees of the Township.  Historically, the Township has commissioned a study every five years to 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, March 2, 2020 
Page 3 
 

ensure that compensation and benefits offered are in line with similarly situated organizations to remain 
competitive in the workforce.  This year, additional scope has been added to evaluate the Township’s 
overall organizational structure and indirect benefits offered.   Provided with the agenda is a proposal 
from Hess & Associates to conduct the survey.  Nancy Hess has done similar work in other municipalities 
and organizations around the Commonwealth and in the Centre Region. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the Township Manager to submit an 
engagement letter to N. J. Hess & Associates, LLC., to complete an updated salary study for Ferguson 
Township. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize the Manager to send an engagement letter to N. J. Hess & 
Associates. 

 
5. DISCUSSION OF WORKFORCE HOUSING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 20 minutes 
 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the Township’s Workforce Housing Ordinance.  The ordinance is 
codified under District Regulations of the Zoning Ordinance and applies to all zoning districts where the 
provision of workforce housing units is required or incentivized.  Currently, the Township requires a 
contingent of workforce housing to be built in the Traditional Town Development Zoning District and it is 
incentivized in the Terraced Streetscape District.  The ordinance was adopted in 2015 and achieves a 
very specific purpose of establishing a legacy workforce housing program through deed-restricted, 
owner-occupied units.  It does not consider other elements that are commonly found in workforce housing 
ordinances including provisions for affordable rental units; fee-in-lieu of workforce housing; off-site 
development; and more.  Given that Pine Hall Traditional Town Development has been approved, and 
the workforce housing units of the Turnberry Traditional Town Development have not yet been built, staff 
is recommending that the Board authorize the preparation of an amendment of the Workforce Housing 
Ordinance to consider some or all of these elements. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to prepare an amendment to Chapter 
27, Zoning; Section 716, Workforce Housing.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to prepare an ordinance amendment to Chapter 27, Section 
716, Workforce Housing. 

 
6. APPOINTMENTS TO FERGUSON TOWNSHIP AUTHORITIES, BOARDS, AND 

COMMISSIONS          5 minutes 
 
Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a memorandum from the Township Manager dated March 2, 2020, describing 
the applicants for vacancies on Township Authorities, Boards, and Commissions.  Also, provided are the 
applications for each vacancy.  Currently, applications have been received for vacancies on the 
Township’s Planning Commission; Parks and Recreation Committee; Vacancy Board; and University 
Area Joint Authority Board.  There is only one applicant per vacancy, so the Board did not interview 
candidates, as is permitted by Board policy. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors appoint the applicants for vacancies on various 
Ferguson Township Authorities, Boards, and Commissions as described in the Township Manager 
memorandum dated March 2, 2020.  
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, March 2, 2020 
Page 4 
 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors appoint the applicants to the vacancies on Township ABCs. 

 
7. REVIEW OF DRAFT SPECIAL EVENTS POLICY AMENDMENT  10 minutes 
 
Narrative 
The Township adopted a Special Events Policy in February 2009.  The policy was developed to assure 
that the Township:  is properly informed of special events, recover costs associated with special events, 
protect the Township from potential liability and integrate Centre Region Parks and Recreation 
Department Large Group Events and PennDOT rules.  Staff revised the policy and included language 
permitting alcohol, food and commercial activities at special events.  The draft revised policy is included 
in the agenda and staff is requesting that the Board provide feedback on this policy. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize advertisement of a public hearing on a 
resolution amending the Ferguson Township Special Events Policy.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize advertisement of the public hearing. 

 
8. BOARD MEMBER REQUEST – EMPLOYER PAID SICK LEAVE  10 minutes 
 
Narrative 
Given the public health implications, all employees (satisfying certain conditions) in Ferguson Township 
shall have paid sick leave.  The Township should have a sick leave ordinance on the lines of what 
Pittsburgh passed and as was upheld by the Pennsylvania Supreme Court. 
 
1. Sick employees should not have to choose between going to work because they cannot afford to not get 

paid.  Doing so spreads their disease to others and the community as a whole suffers. 
 

2. Pittsburgh’s ordinance requires employers with 15 or more employees give 40 hours of paid sick leave 
per year.  And employers with 15 or fewer employees provide a modest amount (up to 24 hours) of paid 
sick leave per year. 

 
3. Typically, the lowest income workers lack paid sick leave and a substantial number of them work in the 

food services industry and other services industries where the chances of spread of disease are the most 
and the wages are the lowest. 

 
In order for the Township to learn more about the pros and the cons of such an ordinance and its 
feasibility, the Board directs its staff to present information to the Board of Supervisors and that the Board 
discusses the pros and cons of such an ordinance in the next meeting. 
 
Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to research a Township-wide employer 
sick leave ordinance and present its conclusions to the Board for further consideration. 

 
VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS  5 minutes 

 
2. OTHER COMMITTEE REPORTS  5 minutes 

a. CCMPO Coordinating Committee  
  



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Monday, March 2, 2020 
Page 5 
 

 
3. STAFF REPORTS  15 minutes 

a. Manager’s Report 
b. Public Works Director 
c. Planning & Zoning Director 

 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – MARCH 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 





CENTRE REGION CLIMATE ACTION & ADAPTATION PLAN 


 
2/12/20 


CENTRE REGION GHG EMISSIONS REDUCTION TARGET RECOMMENDATION 


 


Why do we need GHG emission reduction targets? 


An emissions reduction target is a public 
demonstration of the region’s commitment 
to reduce GHG emissions or emissions 
intensity by a future date. The target will 
lead the climate action and adaptation 
planning process. 


PSE Committee will use the Centre Region 
GHG inventory results to establish emissions 
reduction targets, identify tangible actions 
aimed at reducing GHG emissions, and 
measure progress toward achieving those 
targets. 


PSE Committee is working to identify and 
establish targets, Milestone #2 - which is 
highlighted yellow in the picture to the right 
to reflect where the region is in the climate 
action and adaptation planning process. 


 


What should the GHG emissions reduction targets be? 


The Centre Region Climate Action and Adaptation Technical Advisory Group (TAG), at its 
meeting on January 27, 2020 recommended that the Centre Region elected officials set GHG 
emissions reduction targets that are in line with what the latest climate science says is 
necessary to meet the goals of the Paris Agreement. Page 3-4 include the Headline Statements 
from the Summary for Policy Makers from the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 
(IPCC) Special Report on 1.5 °C . 


The Paris Agreement recommends targets that limit global warming to well-below 2°C above 
pre-industrial levels and pursue efforts to limit warming to 1.5°C. The reports use 2010 as the 
baseline year when identifying reduction targets. Since GHG emissions inventory results are 
available for 2006 and 2016, CRPA Staff was able to extrapolate the Centre Region 2010 levels. 
TAG recommends the following GHG emissions reduction targets: 


• 45% reduction in GHG emissions by 2030 based on 2010 levels 
• 80% reduction in GHG emissions by 2050 based on 2010 levels 
• Offset the remaining 20% of GHG emissions in 2050 with carbon offset projects to be 


carbon neutral in 2050 



https://www.ipcc.ch/sr15/





CENTRE REGION CLIMATE ACTION & ADAPTATION PLAN 


 
2/12/20 


How will the region be setting GHG emissions reduction targets? 


February The PSE Committee discusses the inventory results and TAG’s recommended 
targets at their municipal meetings.  


March 5 PSE Committee reviews draft resolution for regional GHG emissions 
reduction targets that is based on input from the municipal meetings. 


 PSE Committee receives the draft GHG Emissions and Methodology Report. 


March 23 General Forum adopts a Centre Region resolution that defines the GHG 
emissions reduction targets for the region. 


 







Global Warming of 1.5°C
An IPCC Special Report on the impacts of global warming of 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels and related 


global greenhouse gas emission pathways, in the context of strengthening the global response 
to the threat of climate change, sustainable development, and efforts to eradicate poverty


Headline Statements from the Summary for Policymakers*


Understanding Global Warming of 1.5°C


Human activities are estimated to have caused approximately 1.0°C of global warming above pre-industrial levels, with a 
likely range of 0.8°C to 1.2°C. Global warming is likely to reach 1.5°C between 2030 and 2052 if it continues to increase 
at the current rate. (high confidence)


Warming from anthropogenic emissions from the pre-industrial period to the present will persist for centuries to millennia and 
will continue to cause further long-term changes in the climate system, such as sea level rise, with associated impacts (high 
confidence), but these emissions alone are unlikely to cause global warming of 1.5°C (medium confidence).


Climate-related risks for natural and human systems are higher for global warming of 1.5°C than at present, but lower than at 
2°C (high confidence). These risks depend on the magnitude and rate of warming, geographic location, levels of development 
and vulnerability, and on the choices and implementation of adaptation and mitigation options (high confidence).


Projected Climate Change, Potential Impacts and Associated Risks


 Climate models project robust differences in regional climate characteristics between present-day and global warming 
of 1.5°C, and between 1.5°C and 2°C. These differences include increases in: mean temperature in most land and ocean 
regions (high confidence), hot extremes in most inhabited regions (high confidence), heavy precipitation in several regions 
(medium confidence), and the probability of drought and precipitation deficits in some regions (medium confidence).


 By 2100, global mean sea level rise is projected to be around 0.1 metre lower with global warming of 1.5°C compared 
to 2°C (medium confidence). Sea level will continue to rise well beyond 2100 (high confidence), and the magnitude and 
rate of this rise depend on future emission pathways. A slower rate of sea level rise enables greater opportunities for 
adaptation in the human and ecological systems of small islands, low-lying coastal areas and deltas (medium confidence).


 On land, impacts on biodiversity and ecosystems, including species loss and extinction, are projected to be lower at 1.5°C 
of global warming compared to 2°C. Limiting global warming to 1.5°C compared to 2°C is projected to lower the impacts 
on terrestrial, freshwater and coastal ecosystems and to retain more of their services to humans (high confidence).


 Limiting global warming to 1.5°C compared to 2°C is projected to reduce increases in ocean temperature as well as 
associated increases in ocean acidity and decreases in ocean oxygen levels (high confidence). Consequently, limiting global 
warming to 1.5°C is projected to reduce risks to marine biodiversity, fisheries, and ecosystems, and their functions and 
services to humans, as illustrated by recent changes to Arctic sea ice and warm-water coral reef ecosystems (high confidence).


 Climate-related risks to health, livelihoods, food security, water supply, human security, and economic growth are projected 
to increase with global warming of 1.5°C and increase further with 2°C. 


 Most adaptation needs will be lower for global warming of 1.5°C compared to 2°C (high confidence). There are a wide 
range of adaptation options that can reduce the risks of climate change (high confidence). There are limits to adaptation 
and adaptive capacity for some human and natural systems at global warming of 1.5°C, with associated losses (medium 
confidence). The number and availability of adaptation options vary by sector (medium confidence).


* Headline statements are the overarching conclusions of the approved Summary for Policymakers which, taken together, provide a concise narrative.







Emission Pathways and System Transitions Consistent with 1.5°C Global Warming


 In model pathways with no or limited overshoot of 1.5°C, global net anthropogenic CO2 emissions decline by about 45% 
from 2010 levels by 2030 (40–60% interquartile range), reaching net zero around 2050 (2045–2055 interquartile range). 
For limiting global warming to below 2°C CO2 emissions are projected to decline by about 25% by 2030 in most pathways 
(10–30% interquartile range) and reach net zero around 2070 (2065–2080 interquartile range). Non-CO2 emissions in 
pathways that limit global warming to 1.5°C show deep reductions that are similar to those in pathways limiting warming 
to 2°C. (high confidence)  


 Pathways limiting global warming to 1.5°C with no or limited overshoot would require rapid and far-reaching transitions in 
energy, land, urban and infrastructure (including transport and buildings), and industrial systems (high confidence). These 
systems transitions are unprecedented in terms of scale, but not necessarily in terms of speed, and imply deep emissions 
reductions in all sectors, a wide portfolio of mitigation options and a significant upscaling of investments in those options 
(medium confidence). 


 All pathways that limit global warming to 1.5°C with limited or no overshoot project the use of carbon dioxide removal 
(CDR) on the order of 100–1000 GtCO2 over the 21st century. CDR would be used to compensate for residual emissions and, 
in most cases, achieve net negative emissions to return global warming to 1.5°C following a peak (high confidence). CDR 
deployment of several hundreds of GtCO2 is subject to multiple feasibility and sustainability constraints (high confidence). 
Significant near-term emissions reductions and measures to lower energy and land demand can limit CDR deployment to a 
few hundred GtCO2 without reliance on bioenergy with carbon capture and storage (BECCS) (high confidence). 


Strengthening the Global Response in the Context of Sustainable Development and Efforts to 
Eradicate Poverty


 Estimates of the global emissions outcome of current nationally stated mitigation ambitions as submitted under the Paris 
Agreement would lead to global greenhouse gas emissions in 2030 of 52–58 GtCO2eq yr−1 (medium confidence). Pathways 
reflecting these ambitions would not limit global warming to 1.5°C, even if supplemented by very challenging increases 
in the scale and ambition of emissions reductions after 2030 (high confidence). Avoiding overshoot and reliance on future 
large-scale deployment of carbon dioxide removal (CDR) can only be achieved if global CO2 emissions start to decline well 
before 2030 (high confidence). 


 The avoided climate change impacts on sustainable development, eradication of poverty and reducing inequalities would be 
greater if global warming were limited to 1.5°C rather than 2°C, if mitigation and adaptation synergies are maximized while 
trade-offs are minimized (high confidence). 


 Adaptation options specific to national contexts, if carefully selected together with enabling conditions, will have benefits 
for sustainable development and poverty reduction with global warming of 1.5°C, although trade-offs are possible (high 
confidence). 


 Mitigation options consistent with 1.5°C pathways are associated with multiple synergies and trade-offs across the Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs). While the total number of possible synergies exceeds the number of trade-offs, their net effect 
will depend on the pace and magnitude of changes, the composition of the mitigation portfolio and the management of the 
transition. (high confidence)  


 Limiting the risks from global warming of 1.5°C in the context of sustainable development and poverty eradication implies system 
transitions that can be enabled by an increase of adaptation and mitigation investments, policy instruments, the acceleration of 
technological innovation and behaviour changes (high confidence). 


Sustainable development supports, and often enables, the fundamental societal and systems transitions and transformations that 
help limit global warming to 1.5°C. Such changes facilitate the pursuit of climate-resilient development pathways that achieve 
ambitious mitigation and adaptation in conjunction with poverty eradication and efforts to reduce inequalities (high confidence). 


Strengthening the capacities for climate action of national and sub-national authorities, civil society, the private sector, 
indigenous peoples and local communities can support the implementation of ambitious actions implied by limiting global 
warming to 1.5°C (high confidence). International cooperation can provide an enabling environment for this to be achieved 
in all countries and for all people, in the context of sustainable development. International cooperation is a critical enabler for 
developing countries and vulnerable regions (high confidence).





		Recommended Centre Region Targets

		CENTRE REGION GHG EMISSIONS REDUCTION TARGET RECOMMENDATION

		Why do we need GHG emission reduction targets?

		What should the GHG emissions reduction targets be?

		How will the region be setting GHG emissions reduction targets?





		IPCC 1.5 Special Report_ Headlines for Policy Makers






⚫ Page 1 


 


Memo 


To:  Board of Supervisors  


From:  David Pribulka, Township Manager 


CC:  Angela Kalke, Human Resources Administrator 


Date:  March 2, 2020 


Re:  Appointments to Authorities, Boards, and Commissions 


 
Applications for various vacancies on Township Authorities, Boards, and Commissions 
have been provided with the March 2nd Regular Meeting agenda packet. The following 
are the slate of applicants, positions, and terms that are recommended for approval: 
 


Applicant Name Position Term Expiration Ward of Residence 


Jerry Learn Parks and 
Recreation 
Committee 


December 31, 2022 1 


Rick Tetzlaff Parks and 
Recreation 
Committee 


December 31, 2021 3 


Qian Zhang Planning 
Commission 
(Alternate) 


December 31, 2023 3 


Josh Potter Vacancy Board December 31, 2020 1 


Steve Miller University Area Joint 
Authority 


December 31, 2020 2 


 
Recommended Motion: That the Board of Supervisors appoint the applicants for 
vacancies on various Ferguson Township Authorities, Boards, and Commissions as 
described in the Township Manager memorandum dated March 2, 2020. 


Ferguson Township 


3147 Research Drive 


State College, PA 16801 


Telephone:  814 – 238 – 4651 


Fax:  814 – 238 – 3454 


www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


 
 
 


 
 


 








 


 
 
 


MUNICIPAL 
SEPARATE STORM 


SEWER SYSTEM 
(MS4) 


 
 
 


STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT 


PROGRAM 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Last Update – March 2020 
 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 2 of 13  
 


 
 
 
 
 


Table of Contents 
 
Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................ 2 
I.  PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH PROGRAM ...................................................... 3 


General ..................................................................................................................................... 3 
Educational Strategies .............................................................................................................. 3 
Outreach Programs. .................................................................................................................. 4 


II.  PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND PARTICIPATION PROGRAM.................................... 5 
General ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
Public Notification ................................................................................................................... 5 
Public Participation .................................................................................................................. 5 


III.  ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION and ELIMINATION program ............................... 7 
General ..................................................................................................................................... 7 
Prohibition of Illicit Discharges ............................................................................................... 7 
Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program .............................................................. 7 


IV.  CONSTRUCTION SITE STORM WATER RUNOFF CONTROL PROGRAM .............. 9 
General ..................................................................................................................................... 9 


V.  POST CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER MANAGEMENT (PCSM) IN NEW AND 
RE-DEVELOPMENT ACTIVTIES ............................................................................................. 10 


General ................................................................................................................................... 10 
VI.  POLLUTION PREVENTION / GOOD HOUSEKEEPING  FOR MUNICIPAL 
OPERATIONS .............................................................................................................................. 11 


General ................................................................................................................................... 11 
Evaluation of Existing BMP Inventory and O&M Programs ................................................ 11 
Training Programs .................................................................................................................. 12 


VII.  POLLUTION REDUCTION PLANS ............................................................................... 13 
General ................................................................................................................................... 13 


 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 3 of 13  
 


I. PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH PROGRAM 
 


General 
 
Scope. This chapter outlines the general approach Ferguson Township takes in educating and 
informing the residents of the Township on the entire extent of the Stormwater Management 
Program through inclusion in the development, implementation, evaluation, and updating of this 
plan. 
 
Intent. The purpose of this plan is to include, so far as practical, all those affected by the 
stormwater management rules and regulations of the Township through the education and 
outreach programs as described throughout this document. 
 


Educational Strategies 
 
Educational Materials. Ferguson Township distributes new and existing educational materials 
developed by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) that contain 
information on stormwater Best Management Practices (BMPs) and environmental impacts of 
stormwater. The materials are distributed at a minimum on a yearly basis. In addition to DEP 
educational materials, the Township may research and compile fact sheets, educational 
brochures, and stormwater videos. Educational materials may be distributed via electronic 
mailing (E newsletter), distribution of hard copy newsletters, posted on the Township website, or 
available at the Township office. Target groups will include businesses, schools, the 
development and construction community, and residents or visitors of Ferguson Township. 
 


Newsletters. Ferguson Township publishes a semi-annual newsletter that is distributed to 
all residents and businesses within the Township and is used to provide information on 
the township stormwater management plan and to promote stormwater BMPs.  An 
individual mailing is performed to all property owners. 
 
Brochures. The Township distributes an educational brochure entitled “Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention” with all applications for zoning permits. The brochure explains the 
negative impacts of construction stormwater runoff. The brochure is targeted towards any 
property owner or contractor performing construction projects in the Township. 
 
Posters.  Ferguson Township displays posters from various sources that highlight the 
importance of clean stormwater runoff as well as other watershed issues.  These posters 
are displayed at various times throughout the year in both the Township business office 
lobby and the public meeting room.  These are targeted to visitors at the Township 
building. 
 
Spring Creek Watershed Map.  Ferguson Township participates with the other MS4 
permit holders within the Centre Region to publish and distribute the Spring Creek 
Watershed Map which identifies the boundaries of the watershed and discusses protecting 
and promoting a healthy watershed.  These maps are distributed by MS4 Partners at 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 4 of 13  
 


various community events.  The maps are also available at the Township offices.  These 
are targeted to visitors at the Township building. 
 
Fact Sheets. Ferguson Township reviews fact sheets that have been developed by other 
municipalities and organizations for different BMPs, including detention and retention 
ponds, bioretention areas, filter strips, and others. In addition, the Township researches 
fact sheets targeted towards local homeowners that provide information on steps they can 
take to minimize stormwater pollutant runoff from their properties. The Township 
compiles fact sheets determined applicable to educational needs of the stormwater 
management plan. These select fact sheets may be distributed to residents via newsletter, 
available at the Township office, or placed on the Township web site at 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us. 
 


Educational Programs. Ferguson Township contracts with ClearWater Conservancy to conduct 
public education for Ferguson Township in cooperation with the Centre Region MS4 Partners, 
which includes the State College Borough, Penn State University, College, Harris, Patton, 
Spring, and Ferguson Townships. The MS4 Partners also design a newspaper advertisement and 
have it printed in the Centre Daily Times. The MS4 Partners may conduct other public meetings 
and educational presentations and may create additional newspaper advertisements and 
educational materials for Ferguson Township.  
 


Outreach Programs.  
 


Storm Drain Stenciling. Ferguson Township will develop a storm drain stenciling 
program during 2020 to help make residents aware that materials dumped in storm drains 
may eventually flows to streams, rivers and lakes. Under this program, storm drain labels 
that say “No Dumping, Drains to Creek” would be made available to volunteer groups 
within the Township.  Accompanying door hangers will be provided for volunteers to 
distribute during the labeling process to educate homeowners about the purpose of the 
program and the need for community action to protect water quality. Volunteer groups 
will be utilized to affix the storm drain labels and place the educational door hangers. The 
goals of this program include educating the participants and the public about how water 
quality is impacted by runoff that enters storm drains, getting the public involved in a 
volunteer activity that promotes water quality, and changing the public’s behavior 
regarding undesirable discharges to storm drains. Achievement of these goals will help 
reduce levels of pollutants entering storm drains and, eventually, local streams.  The 
implementation of this strategy is dependent upon volunteer groups offering to perform 
the service. 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 5 of 13  
 


II. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND PARTICIPATION PROGRAM 
 


General 
 


Scope. This chapter outlines the approach that Ferguson Township takes in order to provide 
opportunities for Township residents and other stakeholders to participate in the development 
and implementation of the Township’s Stormwater Management Plan.  In the following sections, 
details are provided on public notification procedures, stormwater related meetings that are open 
to the public, and stormwater programs in which the public can directly participate. 
 


Public Notification 
 
Legal Notices. Notices of public meetings of the Board of Supervisors are published in the 
Centre Daily Times including action that may be taken on changes to the Stormwater 
Management Ordinance. The public is provided an opportunity to be involved at these meetings. 
 
Press Releases. Press releases may be issued by the Township or ClearWater Conservancy in 
advance of stormwater related meetings and events such as watershed meetings and volunteer 
stream clean-ups to encourage general attendance. 
 
Web Sites. Information regarding upcoming meetings and special events, as well as copies of 
stormwater-related documents, is made available to the general public on the Township web site 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us.   
 
Newsletters. In addition to press releases and web sites, information on how the public can 
become more involved in the stormwater management program is provided in the Ferguson 
Township Newsletter developed and distributed by Ferguson Township. This newsletter includes 
information on upcoming events (e.g., public meetings, clean-ups), stories about different 
stormwater management programs, and suggestions on how those interested can become more 
involved. For each issue, approximately 7000 copies are printed and distributed to residents and 
business owners. The Township utilizes the newsletter to present information related to 
stormwater, its impacts on water quality, and what can be done to control it. 
 
Electronic Mailing List. Ferguson Township maintains an electronic mailing list that is used to 
present timely information to those that request it. E-mails can be sent to all members of the 
mailing list for stormwater related press releases, in advance of public meetings and special 
events, and when the newsletter is completed. Anyone interested in receiving this kind of 
information can join the mailing list by visiting www.twp.ferguson.pa.us and clicking on the 
“Sign Up for E-mail Alerts” or by sending an email to info@twp.ferguson.pa.us  
 


Public Participation 
 
Public Work Groups / Committees. There are independent local work groups and committees 
that discuss issues that at least partially relate to stormwater. These are open to the public, and 
publicized in several ways, including through media press releases, newsletters, and web sites. 
The Township may coordinate efforts with these local works groups and offer assistance with 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 6 of 13  
 


advertisement of volunteer activities and program organization assistance. A working 
relationship with the local work groups will allow the Township to gain valuable input from 
citizens that are already involved in the community and are interested in the quality of the 
environment. The input gained could be utilized to develop successful stormwater related public 
participation activities. 
 
One such example of a public committee is the Spring Creek Watershed Commission.  The 
commission meets regularly to discuss issues related to the watershed and develop programs to 
promote the watershed.  As a member, Ferguson Township actively participates on the 
Watershed Commission and helps to fund these activities. 
 
Storm Drain Stenciling.  Ferguson Township will establish a storm drain stenciling program for 
the Township watershed within the urbanized area boundary. In the future, this program may be 
extended to remaining portions of the Township. Accompanying door hangers will be provided 
during the labeling process to educate homeowners about the purpose of the program and the 
need for community action to protect water quality. In an effort to get the public more involved 
in this program, the Township may, with assistance from ClearWater Conservancy, recruit 
volunteers from the community to help label storm drains and place door hangers. In this way, 
the participating volunteers will be able to learn more about stormwater issues while they work 
on a project designed to reduce stormwater impacts on stream quality.  This program is 
dependent upon volunteers. 
 
Water Resources Monitoring Project.  The Water Resources Monitoring Project was initiated 
in 1997 by the Spring Creek Watershed Commission.  It’s goal is to gather baseline information 
about the quantity and quality of the water resources in the Spring Creek Watershed that can be 
used for the long-term protection of these resources.  Most activities performed for the project 
are completed by volunteers.  They currently monitor 18 stream sites, 3 well sites, and 7 spring 
sites throughout Centre County. Test results are entered into a computer database, which can be 
accessed by the public. More information about the program can be found on their website at 
http://www.springcreekmonitoring.org. 
 
Volunteer Clean-Up Programs. ClearWater Conservancy coordinates an annual volunteer 
stream clean-up. The organization has been coordinating this event since 1996 and it has been 
growing in success each year. The Centre Region MS4 permit holders have been involved and 
have offered man-power, equipment and financial assistance. Ferguson Township will continue 
this relationship with Clearwater for as long as the program is successful. Collaboration with 
Clearwater could also open doors for more cleanup programs in future years.   
 
Public Meeting.  A public meeting will be held annually to review the Township Stormwater 
Management Program to receive input on the program, edit as appropriate, and report on 
activities and violations that occurred during the prior year.  This year the public meeting will be 
held at the March 2, 2020 Board of Supervisors Meeting. 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 7 of 13  
 


III. ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION 
PROGRAM 


 
General 


 
Scope. The Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program involves all areas within the 
Urbanized Area boundary of Ferguson Township. Both the Township and residents participate in 
this program.  The Township participates through approvals, inspections, maintenance and other 
enforcement measures covered in the rules and regulations referred to in this section.  Residents 
participate through public involvement meetings and training, observations, and complaints. 
Open lines of communication between the residents and the Township are essential to the 
success of the tasks contained in this section. 
 
Mapping of Township Storm Sewer System. Ferguson Township has developed a map of all 
storm sewer outfalls and receiving streams within the Ferguson Township Urbanized Area. This 
map is updated and submitted to Pennsylvania DEP as part of the annual report. The Township 
records outfall location information and other attribute data, including pipe size, inlet types, 
material and condition. Additionally, if flow is noted during dry weather, it is recorded and 
investigated. In an effort to keep the map up to date, developers are required to submit record 
plan information in electronic format for all new developments so that the storm sewer systems 
may be integrated into the Township’s GIS storm sewer database. Township staff then maps all 
new storm sewer systems after the Township accepts new roadways, as well as capital project 
modifications to the system.  
 


Prohibition of Illicit Discharges 
 
Storm Sewer System Prohibited Discharges. The Ferguson Township stormwater ordinance 
includes language from the DEP model ordinance prohibiting illicit discharges to storm sewer 
systems, as well as provisions for enforcement and penalties. 
  


Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program 
 
Procedures for Identifying Priority Areas. Potential priority areas for illicit discharges were 
reviewed to determine if there are areas that should be targeted: 


1. The few areas where there are on-lot septic systems are already included in a Sewage 
Management District that requires periodic pumping and inspection.  These are not seen 
as priority areas. 


2. The public sewer system is well maintenance without any known ongoing problem areas 
within the MS4 Urban Area.  This is not seen as a priority area. 


3. Areas of concentrated industrial activity including any current or future permits to 
discharge industrial waste under a NPDES permit and any current or future NPDES 
permitted discharges of storm water associated with industrial activities were reviewed.  
There are no industrial permits in our MS4 area.  This is not seen as a priority area. 


 
Based upon the above, there are no priority areas within the MS4 permit area.  All portions of the 
MS4 system are treated with equal importance. 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 8 of 13  
 


  
 


 
Field Inspections. Field inspections of all MS4 outfalls are completed at least once per MS4 
permit cycle.  Any outfall that exhibits illicit or questionable flow will continue to be inspected 
annually thereafter until two consecutive inspections reveal no issues.  The inspections will be 
performed during dry weather to aid in determining illicit discharges.   
 
Ferguson Township personnel involved in conducting field inspections under this program will 
be trained to identify potential sources of illicit discharges and to identify illicit discharges. If an 
illicit discharge is detected, appropriate steps will be taken to eliminate the discharge including 
testing of a sample to aid in determining the source of the discharge. Additional steps will be 
specific to the type of discharge detected. Storm sewer system maps can be used to trace the 
discharge to the source. 
 
Complaints. Illicit discharge complaints regarding storm sewer systems will be addressed by 
Ferguson Township. Every complaint will be documented in a log book to be maintained by the 
Township specifically for that purpose.  If necessary, site visits will be made to gather additional 
information. Spills or illegal dumping activities will be reported to Pennsylvania DEP. If 
necessary, other entities will be consulted, which may include; the local fire department, Centre 
Region Emergency Management Agency, County Emergency Communication Center, SCBWA, 
and UAJA.  For complaints that are found to be valid, a Notice of Violation will be delivered to 
the responsible party(ies) containing orders to make the appropriate corrections. 
 
Procedures for Eliminating Illicit Discharges. Procedures for tracing the source and 
eliminating an illicit discharge will be dependent upon the type of discharge.  
 
When tracing a source, all available information will be considered, including stream maps, any 
existing storm sewer maps, maps of on-site sewage systems, sanitary sewer maps, knowledge of 
area businesses upstream of the source, aerial photos of Ferguson Township, parcel information, 
land use, topography and other information.  
 
When an illicit discharge has been identified, appropriate steps will be taken to eliminate the 
source as soon as practical. The steps to be taken to eliminate the source and the entities to be 
involved in eliminating the source are also dependent upon the specific circumstances of the 
discharge. 
 
Educational Outreach. Ferguson Township newsletters that are developed under MCM#1 will 
occasionally include educational information on Illicit Discharges. Theses newsletters will be 
distributed to target audiences including residents, businesses, and staff at local schools.   
 
Processing of Solid Wastes.  Ferguson Township participates in a solid waste contract that 
includes mandatory refuse and recycling for all properties.  The contract and program is 
managed by the Centre Region Council of Governments. 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 9 of 13  
 


IV. CONSTRUCTION SITE STORM WATER RUNOFF CONTROL 
PROGRAM  


 
General 


 
Scope.  This chapter outlines the approach Ferguson Township takes to ensure that Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) are implemented as part of construction related activities. 
 
Program.  Ferguson Township relies upon Pennsylvania’s Department of Environmental 
Protection statewide program to meet the permit requirements of this activity.  All activities are 
administered, permitted, tracked, inspected, and enforced by DEP or their agent, the Centre 
County Conservation District (CCCD).  All inquiries regarding construction site stormwater 
runoff are directed to the CCCD. 
 
Understanding of Responsibilities.  Ferguson Township and the CCCD have entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with respect to the relative responsibilities under this 
program.  The MOU was authorized to be signed by the Chairman of the Township Board of 
Supervisors by Resolution 2015-04 on February 2, 2015, and signed by the CCCD on February 
11, 2015. 
 
 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 10 of 13  
 


V. POST CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER MANAGEMENT (PCSM) IN 
NEW AND RE-DEVELOPMENT ACTIVTIES  


 
General 


 
Scope.  This chapter outlines the general approach Ferguson Township takes to ensure that Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) are implemented as part of Storm Water Management Site Plans 
related to construction activities and that the BMPs are being properly operated and maintained 
by the responsible party. 
 
Storm Water Ordinance. Ferguson Township has enacted an ordinance for stormwater 
management that includes requirements for PCSM implementation. The ordinance (No. 1018) 
was last updated with approval on June 6, 2016.   This ordinance is used as a stormwater 
management standard for all land development and is presently implemented by contracting an 
engineering firm to review and approve all plans for compliance with the standard. 
 
Low Impact Development. Ferguson Township encourages low impact development as 
addressed in Section 301. H of its Stormwater Management ordinance. 
 
Develop Maps.  Ferguson Township maintains a map and inventory of all BMPs that have been 
approved and constructed since March 10, 2003.  This map is updated as new projects ‘as-built’ 
record plans are completed.  Copies of the Post Construction Stormwater Management Plan for 
each construction activity are also filed in a separate folder for convenience during inspections. 
 
Inspection Procedures.  Ferguson Township has identified the location of all BMPs that were 
constructed since March 10, 2003; and updates the map as well as BMP inventory table annually 
with newly completed BMPs.  Each year, 20% of the BMP sites will be inspected so that all 
BMP sites are inspected at least once in the 5-year permit cycle.  Each year as the inspections are 
completed, the BMP inventory table will be updated to reflect all required information.  The 
BMP inventory table was developed in Excel and updated annually.  The Excel BMP inventory 
table is currently being migrated into GIS as an attribute table. 
 
Enforcement Procedures.  Annually as inspections are completed, any BMP found not to be in 
compliance with the approved plan shall result in a Notice of Violation being provided to the 
property owner, and if appropriate copied to the entity responsible for maintenance.  The 
requirements of the Notice of Violation and any follow up action shall be in accordance with the 
Township Stormwater Management Ordinance.  
 
Tracking System.  The BMP inventory table shall be used as a tracking mechanism to assure 
that all BMPs are inspected within the permit cycle, and shall indicate violations, corrections, 
and any necessary enforcement action. 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 11 of 13  
 


VI. POLLUTION PREVENTION / GOOD HOUSEKEEPING  
FOR MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS 


 
General 


 
 
Scope. Ferguson Township Public Works (FTPW) operations utilize Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) to prevent pollution.  Ferguson Township annually re-examines the existing inventory of 
BMPs of the operation and maintenance program, making improvements to the program in order 
to reduce the amount of pollutant runoff from Township operations. To accomplish this, existing 
programs are reviewed, recommendations for improvement are made and training programs 
updated for employees. 
 


Evaluation of Existing BMP Inventory and O&M Programs 
 
Ferguson Township currently addresses pollutant runoff from township operations through 
written procedures and guidelines for township operations and maintenance activities. A 
description of the existing activities currently being conducted is provided below: 
 


Fleet Maintenance Operations. The Ferguson Township Public Works Department 
conducts several programs that are designed to minimize the amount of pollutants 
entering the storm sewer system from fleet maintenance. 
 


Antifreeze Recycling. Used antifreeze drained from Township vehicles and 
equipment is collected and stored. The stored antifreeze is then collected by a 
company which recycles the antifreeze. 
 
Motor Oil Recycling. Used motor oil, gear oil, hydraulic oil, transmission fluid, 
power steering fluid, and brake fluid drained from Township vehicles and 
equipment is collected and stored in a steel tank. The storage tank is later emptied 
by a company which recycles the oil and fluids. 
 
Vehicle Oil Filters. The Fleet Maintenance Department currently drains the used 
oil filters and then stores the filters in a steel drum for future recycling.   
 
Floor Drains:  Floor drains in the maintenance facility (FTPW Buildings 1 and 4) 
are connected to the public sanitary sewer system.  The floor drains are equipped 
with oil/water separators and are cleaned as needed by a septic cleaning service. 
 
Vehicle Washing:  All vehicle washing is performed in the maintenance facilities 
that drain to the sanitary sewer system.  An outside washing pit that drains into a 
rock sump with overflow into a grass lined swale is used to hose off mud and 
large debris prior to entering the maintenance facilities.  No vehicle washing is 
permitted in the parking lot or FTPW Buildings 2 and 3. 
 







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 12 of 13  
 


Fleet Fueling Operations. Ferguson Township owns and maintains its own vehicle 
fueling tanks and pumps.  The tanks have leak monitoring systems.  Fuel spill control 
supplies are stored in the adjacent building.   
 
Salt Storage/Application. Ferguson Township currently stores all road salt in an enclosed 
salt storage building. The trucks are loaded outside on a large asphalt pad. Road salt 
spillage during truck loading operations is minimal. Any spill salt is cleaned up with a 
wheel loader. The Township owns and operates sophisticated salt application equipment, 
including ground speed control units, designed to deliver the appropriate amount of salt 
to the roadway to maintain safe roadways.   
 
Preparedness, Prevention, and Contingency Plan; and Spill Prevention, Control, and 
Countermeasures Plan (PPC/SPCC) A PPC/SPCC plan has been prepared for the 
Township’s office and maintenance complex. The plan will be reviewed annually or as 
changes merit to update information and improve the plan.  Annual training on the plan 
will be conducted. 
 
Road / Storm Sewer System Maintenance. Street sweeping is conducted throughout the 
Urbanized Area of Ferguson Township that greatly reduces the sediment and debris that 
enters the storm sewer system. Township personnel conduct routine and scheduled 
maintenance of the storm sewer system. Scheduled maintenance is based on storm sewer 
inventory and inspection database, which includes multiple attributes pertaining to the 
conditions of a particular storm sewer element. Routine maintenance is performed as 
needed and includes cleaning catch basins and outfalls as needed. 
 
Waste Collection. Curbside trash collection and recycling is mandatory throughout the 
entire township. Ferguson Township utilizes the Centre Region Council of Governments 
to contract for curbside trash collection and recycling. The Centre County Solid Waste 
Authority operates recycling drop-off centers in different parts of the County some of 
which are located within the Township. The Township Public Works Department 
performs leaf and brush collection throughout the year. Volunteers participating in the 
Ferguson Township Adopt-A-Road program conduct litter collection up to four times per 
year along approximately 35 miles of township roadways. 
  


 
Training Programs 


 
The Township has developed a pollution prevention / good housekeeping training program for 
employees. Existing training materials available through Pennsylvania DEP and other agencies, 
organizations and municipalities were utilized as much as practical. The township annually 
performs refresher training for employees. Training related to storm sewer system maintenance 
also incorporates training to detect illicit storm water discharges. 
 


  







 
 
 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP MS4 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Last Update – March 2020 (2019-2020 Annual Report) Page 13 of 13  
 


 
VII. POLLUTION REDUCTION PLANS 


 
General 


 
 
Scope. Ferguson Township has prepared a Chesapeake Bay Pollution Reduction Plan (CBPRP) 
in accordance with the requirements of DEP.  This plan identifies BMPs to be implemented 
toward improving the water quality within the Chesapeake Bay and locally impaired waterways.  
The CBPRP was submitted to DEP for approval in February 2018 with the application to renew 
our MS4 permit.  The permit and CBPRP are still pending approval by DEP. 
 
Program Implementation.  After permit issuance/PRP approval from DEP, work will begin 
with design and permitting of select BMPs to meet the target pollutant reductions.  Construction 
of BMPs will occur within the 5-year permit period. 
 
Planning for the Future.  Ferguson Township will continue to look for opportunities to 
implement BMPs to improve stormwater quality.  Future permit requirements will be evaluated 
after proposed rule makings are published. 
 
 
 

































 


1 
 


Date Policy 


Description 


Adoption Date Amendment 


Date 


Page/Section 


2/6/2009 Special 


Events 


Procedure 


 10/21/2013 
__/__/2020 


 


 


SPECIAL EVENTS PROCEDURES 


I. INTENT AND PURPOSE 


A. The Township of Ferguson, Centre County, Pennsylvania recognizes that individuals 
and organizations may request the use of Township and regional facilities to host 
special events. 


B. It shall be the primary purpose of this procedure to maintain public safety on 
Township roads, sidewalks, bikeways and rights-of-way as well as minimize the 
impact of a special event on residents and motorists.  


C. Generally, the Township has determined that conducting special events on or 
crossing Township roads, sidewalks, right-of-way, bikeways or other Township 
property is prohibited except by permit. 


D. Special events will be conducted in a manner that is consistent with the policies 
established in this procedure, as well as municipal park regulations and the Large 
Group Events (LGE) Policy of the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority, 
where applicable. 


E. Nothing in this policy is intended to nor shall it interfere in any way with 
constitutionally protected activity. 
 


II. APPLICABILITY 


A. A permit shall be required for special events that seek the exclusive use of (closure) 
or otherwise limit the usage of Township roads, sidewalks, bikeways, rights-of-way 
or other Township property by other users. 


B. A permit shall be required for special events involving a group or gathering with 50 
or more persons seeking to use or cross Township roads, sidewalks, bikeways, rights-
of-way or other Township property. 


C. Special events that will be held jointly within municipal or regional parks and utilizing 
Township roads, sidewalks, bikeways and rights-of-way will also secure approval 
from Centre Region Parks and Recreation for the event. 
 


III. REQUIREMENTS 


A. Roads, sidewalks, bikeways and rights-of-way – The Township has established the 
following criteria for the permitting of special events and the procedures to request 
a permit: 







 


2 
 


 
i. Sponsors of the event can demonstrate to the Township that the event can be 


held safely and that the sponsor will assume all costs and liabilities associated 
with holding this event. 


ii. Measures can be implemented to ensure minimum disruption to the normal 
routine of Township residents. 


a. Some roadways are too narrow, and have many access points such as 
driveways, lanes and other entrances, that it would not be feasible to 
conduct certain events safely without closing the entire roadway to 
traffic. Similarly, certain roadways, specifically those that serve as the 
only point of access to properties are prohibited from closure for any 
special event. 


 


IV. PROCEDURE 


A. For all events excluding those that will be held solely within Centre Region Parks, the 
following procedure is applicable. 


 
i. Persons or organizations who believe they meet the criteria for a permit 


established within the policy should submit a Special Events Permit Application 
to the Township within ten (10) to twelve (12) weeks of the date of the event 
to allow a thorough examination of their request. 
 


ii. The original permit application will be forwarded to the Ferguson Township 
Police Department and a copy of the application will be sent to the Township 
Manager.  Within thirty (30) business days of receipt, the police department 
will process the permit application.  The police department will review the 
application to: 


 
1. Determine if the permit criteria are satisfied; and 
2. Determine the impact on Township staffing and resources, as well as 


approximate cost to the sponsor. 
a. Regardless of whether Township roads, sidewalks or bikeways 


will be utilized, the police department will, at this step, identify 
what municipal resources will be required in excess of normal 
operations. 


b. When applicable, the police department will meet with Public 
Works to evaluate their staffing and resource requirements for 
the special event. 
 


3. The Police Department will provide a written document summarizing 
the findings and cost estimate to the applicant as well as the Township 
Manager. 
 


4. If the applicant accepts the terms, conditions and costs as identified by 
the police department’s analysis, the application will be placed on the 







 


3 
 


Consent Agenda at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors for 
approval.  
 


5. After the application has been considered by the Board of Supervisors, 
the applicant will be contacted by the Township Manager or designee 
and notified of the Board’s decision. The decision to approve or deny a 
permit by the Board of Supervisors shall be final. 


 
B. For events that are held solely within Ferguson Township parks operated by CRPRA, 


the applicant will refer to the attached LGE Policy of CRPRA, or other permitting or 
approval processes as may be applicable.  It shall be the responsibility of the event 
sponsor to notify the Ferguson Township Police Department of the intent to host an 
event in a municipal park at least three (3) weeks prior to the event date in 
accordance with the LGE Policy or CRPRA.  The Police Department will then assess 
whether the event will require Township resources.  If resources are required, a 
written summary will be provided to the applicant. 
 


C. For events held in two or more municipalities or events whose procession will lead 
through multiple municipal jurisdictions, it is the responsibility of the sponsoring 
organization or authorized agent to ensure compliance with all applicable municipal 
regulations. Ferguson Township staff can authorize events held solely on Township 
roads, sidewalks, bikeways and rights-of-way and a permit to host such an event in 
Ferguson Township does not guarantee approval in a neighboring jurisdiction.  While 
the denial of a Special Events Permit by another agency will not affect the status of 
the application in Ferguson Township, it may be necessary to revise the procession 
or planned event accordingly.  For this reason, it shall be the responsibility of the 
sponsoring organization or authorized agent to inform the Ferguson Township Police 
Department of the involvement of other municipalities in the event planning process. 
The sponsoring organization may also be required, when necessary, to assist in 
facilitating meetings between all involved municipalities and entities. 
 


D. Any event that will be held jointly within Centre Region Parks and Township roads, 
sidewalks and bikeways will follow the appropriate LGE Policy of CRPRA(attached), if 
applicable,as well as this procedure. 
 
i. It is recommended that, for such events, the required permitting is secured 


from CRPRA prior to securing authorization from the Township. However, 
under certain time or resource constraints, permitting can take place 
concurrently. 
 


ii. Regardless of whether or not the event will require the use of Township 
roads, sidewalks, bikeways and rights-of-way, the applicant will notify the 
Ferguson Township Police Department of its intent to host such an event at 
least three (3) weeks prior to the event date. 
 







 


4 
 


V. PAYMENT OF COSTS FOR SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT PROVDED 


A. Ferguson Township is unable to financially assist in the operation of special events. 
The Township may assign staff for maintenance and public safety before, during or 
after the event based on the potential number of visitors the event may generate. 
The applicant is responsible for any expenses incurred in excess of normal Township 
operations and maintenance. Applicants will be invoiced for any costs incurred in 
conjunction with the event in excess of the amount escrowed.  
 


B. Associated Costs: 
i. For Special Events Applications, a non-refundable permitting fee shall apply, 


regardless of whether the event is approved or rejected. The permitting fee 
shall be waived for sponsoring organizations with 501(c)(3) tax exempt status. 
 


C. If the actual costs exceed the estimate, for example an event lasts longer than 
originally anticipated, the sponsor shall be invoiced for the additional cost, or have 
the additional cost withheld from escrow. Personnel and equipment costs shall apply 
to all sponsoring organizations. Personnel costs shall be subject to a three (3) hour 
minimum. 
 


D. If damage to public property occurs as a result of the special event, the applicant 
shall be responsible for reimbursing the Township for the material and labor cost to 
repair the damage. 
 


VI. INSURANCE 


A. When required, the following elements will be incorporated within the Certificate of 
Insurance (COI): 


 


i. Required insurance should be written on a per-occurrence basis. 
 


ii. The COI will list Ferguson Township as an ‘Additional Insured’ on a primary 
basis with regard to any other insurance available to the Township. 
 


iii. Notice of Cancellation. All applicants shall provide a minimum of thirty (30) 
days advanced written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or reduction of 
limits of policies required under a COI. 
 


iv. The COI shall contain the following information: 
 


1. Name and addresses of the producer/agent for the policy 
2. Phone and fax number for the producer/agent for the policy 
3. Name of the insurance company and the insurance policy number(s) 
4. Policy period 
5. Name and address of the insured 







 


5 
 


6. Policy limits 
7. Signature of the producer/agent who authorized the COI issuance with 


the date of issuance 
v. Types of Coverage and Minimum Amounts: 


 
1. Commercial General Liability Insurance: 


a. General Aggregate $2,000,000.00 
b. Each Occurrence $1,000.00 
c. Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000.00 


 
2. Automobile Liability Insurance: 


a. Each Accident $1,000,000.00 
b. The insurer shall be rated “A-“ or better by A.M. Best 


company 
 


vi. Exceptions to this requirement including the types of coverage and 
minimum limits of general and automobile liability limits may be considered 
on a case-by-case basis by the Township, subject to review and approval by 
the Township Manager. 


 
B. The COI shall be maintained by the Township in a single central location and should 


be kept on file for a minimum of five (5) years after the completion of each 
project/activity. 
 


C. Failure to provide and maintain sufficient evidence of insurance can result in 
immediate denial of a Special Events Permit. 
 


D. Township insurance requirements do not replace insurance requirements of CRPRA, 
as enumerated within the attached Special Events Police for Large Group Events 
(LGE), where applicable. Events held solely within municipal parks, are as such 
governed by the regulations of the LGE Policy of CRPRA, shall only be required to 
comply with CRPRA insurance guidelines. 
 


VII. PARKING AND VEHICLE ACCESS 


 
A. Parking along Township roads and parks can be limited. Parking is permitted only in 


designated locations. During the application process, Ferguson Township staff shall 
advise the applicant of areas where parking is not permitted for the event. For 
processions, the organizers of the event should provide event staff to assist in directing  
the event procession.  However, event staff shall be prohibited from directing traffic on 
Township roadways. Direction of traffic shall be the responsibility of the Police Officers 
or, in certain cases Public Works or Fire Police assigned to the event. 
 


i. Consideration should be given to make directional and information signs for 
the event. 







 


6 
 


 
ii. Vehicles parked illegally will be ticketed and subject to towing at the owner’s 


expense. 
 


 
iii. Vehicular access to any areas other than paved roadways must be approved 


by the Township and/or CRPRA in advance, including by any event 
contractors, caterers, other event leaders, etc. 
 


VIII. ALCOHOL, FOOD AND COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 


 
Alcohol 
 


A. Generally alcoholic beverages are prohibited at Special Events. Alcohol sales and 
consumption may only be authorized by the Board of Supervisors. 
 


i. CRPRA strictly prohibits the consumption of alcoholic beverages in local and 
regional parks.  
 


B. Applicants seeking the sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages at a Special Event shall: 
 


i. Identify locations, hours of sales/consumptions, site diagram, security 
measures including volunteer and uniform staffing, identification checking, 
dispensing operations and physical enclosure measures. 
 


ii. The service and consumption of alcoholic beverages shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local regulations. The event sponsor must 
provide documentation that the alcohol sales/consumption complies with 
all Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board regulations and licensing rules. 
 


iii. The service of alcoholic beverages in glass containers is prohibited on 
Township property. The Township encourages the use of recyclable 
containers. 
 


C. If the Township approves the sale and or consumption of alcohol at a special event, the 
following shall apply. 
 


i. For each serving station, at least one person shall be trained and certified 
through the Responsible Alcohol Management Program (RAMP) 
server/seller training. 
 


ii. The applicant must designate (posting, ropes, etc.) the authorized alcohol 
consumption area. 
 







 


7 
 


iii. All participants must be provided and wear a designating item to identify 
that they are of legal drinking age. At a minimum, the item issued shall be 
designed that prevents a person from transferring the identifier to another 
person. 
 


iv. The applicant must provide a non-alcoholic beverage option. 
 


D. The Township reserves the right to revoke the permit or discontinue the sales and 
consumption of alcoholic beverages whenever the police department determines that 
consumption of alcohol by the participants becomes excessive, or if the participants 
become unruly, loud, abusive or other disorderly behavior. 
 


Food and Commercial Activities 
 
A. Any commercial activities involving the serving of food, goods or services to the public 


are prohibited at Special Events except where specifically authorized by the Township 
Board of Supervisors or, where applicable, the Director of CRPRA. 


B. If the event involves any food services, Health Department regulations apply. A pre-
event health inspection may be required. See attached Registration of Food Event on 
Public Property application (State College Department of Ordinance Enforcement and 
Public Health). The Township should be notified at least three (3) weeks prior to the 
event that food services will be provided at the event. 


C. Event sponsors requesting to engage in commercial activities will be required to notify 
the Township of such intent at the time of application and provide information on sales 
tax identification and a health inspection permit, if applicable. 
i. The request will be included in the Board of Supervisor’s meeting agenda along 


with the request to host the event and will be considered separately from the 
decision to approve or deny the event in its entirety. 
 


IX. FEES TO PARTICIPANTS 


 
A. Special Event sponsors are prohibited from charging entrance fees or parking fees, 


except where authorized to do so by the Township and, where applicable, CRPRA staff. 
Donations may be requested from event participants. Donations may also be requested 
for food, special services or products offered at the event. 
 


X. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 


 
A. Nothing in this policy shall exempt a sponsoring organization from complying with all 


applicable municipal ordinances, CRPRA regulations, state, federal law, and the 
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation. 


B. Any placement of temporary structures on special event locations related to the event 
must be approved by Township staff and/or where applicable, CRPRA staff. 


C. The Special Event sponsor should provide adequate first aid care during the event. 







 


8 
 


D. The Police Department shall determine at the time of an application whether an 
ambulance and/or water station will be required at the event.  Sponsoring organizations 
shall be responsible for all costs associated with providing these services. 

















Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
Coordinating Committee Meeting 


 


Tuesday, February 25, 2020 
 


6:00 p.m. 
 


Please Note the Location:  
Patton Township Municipal Building 


 
AGENDA 


 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. Approval of Minutes:  January 28, 2020 Coordinating Committee meeting. 
 
3. Public Comments:  For items not on the agenda. 
 
4. Special Presentation - University Park Airport: 
 Update from Airport Director about activities at the Airport 
   No action required 
 
5. Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) 2050: 
 Review Estimated Funding Allocation 
   Action:  Comments to MPO staff 
 
6. Federal and State Funding Outlook 


Discuss CCMPO input to federal and state officials 
  Action:  Direction about potential actions for future meetings 
 
7. Member Reports: 


Reports from members about a significant item(s) of interest 
  No action required 
 
8. Announcements 
 
9. Adjourn 
 


  
  


Next Coordinating Committee meeting: 
Tentative 
Tuesday, March 24, 2020 
6:00 p.m. 
Patton Township Municipal Building 







FEBRUARY 25, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 4 
 


SPECIAL PRESENTATION - UNIVERSITY PARK AIRPORT 
 


Update from Airport Director about Activities at the Airport 
 
The Pennsylvania State University owns the land and most facilities that comprise the University Park 
Airport, located in Benner and Patton Townships. The University is responsible for operating and 
maintaining the airport facilities, except for the passenger air terminal and associated parking, which are 
owned and operated by the Centre County Airport Authority. 
 
University Park Airport Director Bryan Rodgers will provide an informational presentation about recent 
activities at the Airport. Mr. Rodgers’ last presentation to the CCMPO was in November 2015, shortly 
after the completion of the University Park Airport Master Plan. 
 
Although the CCMPO does not have a formal role in the planning and programming of funds relative to 
air travel, the MPO’s Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) is required to address all modes of 
transport. Because the operation and maintenance of airport facilities often has linkages with surface 
transportation needs for which the MPO is responsible for, the presentation provides an opportunity for 
Committee members to hear about activities at the University Park Airport that relate to needs and issues 
that may be addressed in the new LRTP 2050. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the presentation. 
 
 Presented by: Bryan Rodgers, University Park Airport Director 
 
 No action required. 
  







FEBRUARY 25, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 5 
 


CENTRE COUNTY LRTP 2050 
 


Review Estimated Funding Allocation 
 
Federal Planning Regulations 450.324(e) require LRTPs to be financially constrained, and also require that 
LRTPs demonstrate how the existing transportation system will be adequately operated and maintained. Only 
projects for which construction and operating funds are reasonably expected to be available are to be included 
on the LRTP, based on a fiscal constraint analysis included in the Plan. 
 
MPO staff has estimated the amount of revenue from various federal, state, and local funding sources that is 
anticipated to be available to advance projects on the new LRTP 2050. 
 
Federal and state funds are authorized and appropriated through legislative actions, and local funds are 
appropriated by Centre County, municipalities, and other entities on a project-by-project basis. Most local 
funding is necessary to match federal and/or state dollars, although local funds may also be contributed on a 
voluntary basis to leverage federal and state dollars and expedite the implementation of projects. 
 
The attached tables provide the estimated funding allocations for highway/bridge and transit for the thirty-year 
horizon of the LRTP 2050. The tables have been revised from previous LRTPs to reflect current funding 
sources and allocations, as specified in the financial guidance for the new 2021-2024 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP). The tables include a base funding section reflecting federal, state and local 
funding sources and a discretionary funding section. 
 
Attached are: 


 Estimated Funding Allocation for LRTP (highways and bridges) 
 Estimated Funding Allocation for LRTP (transit) 


 
At the meeting, MPO staff will provide a brief presentation about the estimated funding allocations and 
the assumptions upon which the estimates are based. Staff will also note key comments provided by the 
Technical Committee from its discussion on February 12. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the presentation and provide comments to MPO staff. 
 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
   Anne Messner, CCPCDO 
   Greg Kausch, CRPA 
 
 Action: Comments to MPO staff. 
 
 


  







FEBRUARY 25, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 6 
 


FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDING OUTLOOK 
 


Discuss CCMPO Input to Federal and State Officials 
 
Over the past ten years, the Coordinating Committee has periodically provided input to federal and state 
officials about transportation funding, including prior to the development of the most recent federal and state 
transportation legislation. In September 2019, the Coordinating Committee indicated that it wanted to discuss 
the federal and state funding outlook, based on the challenges associated with a decrease in the federal and 
state base allocation of funds for the new 2021-2024 TIP. 
 
From the state perspective, the challenges facing the Commonwealth regarding state transportation funding 
were articulated in the “Risks to Transportation Funding in Pennsylvania” report, which was presented to the 
CCMPO Committees in June 2019. 
 
From the federal perspective, the U.S. Congress is initiating discussions about the reauthorization of the 
federal Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, which expires on September 30, 2020. One of 
the key challenges involved in reauthorization of the FAST Act is how to ensure the long-term solvency of 
the federal Highway Trust Fund. Reauthorization proposals have been prepared by the U.S. Senate and the 
U.S. House of Representatives, however there is concern that a long-term reauthorization bill may not be 
approved until after the November 2020 presidential election. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should begin a discussion of the issues associated with long-term federal and 
state transportation funding, with a goal of establishing a policy position(s) and providing comments to 
federal and state legislators in the next few months. 
 
Attached are: 


 Summary of the CCMPO’s most recent policy positions/actions 
 Summary of U.S. Senate reauthorization proposal - America’s Transportation Infrastructure Act 
 Summary of U.S. House of Representatives reauthorization proposal – Moving America and the 


Environment Forward 
 
 Note:  The Pennsylvania State Transportation Commission’s Risk to Transportation Funding in 


Pennsylvania report is not attached to the agenda, but can be accessed at 
http://www.talkpatransportation.com/perch/resources/tac-2019-transportation-funding-risks-
report.pdf . 


 
Staff will provide a brief presentation about the funding outlook, concluding with potential actions that the 
Coordinating Committee may consider for future meetings, including but not limited to: 
 


a. Receiving a presentation about the Southeast PA and Southwest PA Partnership for Mobility Studies, 
which were conducted to identify strategies to account for the potential reduction in the Pennsylvania 
Turnpike Commission’s lease payments to PennDOT. 
 


b. Receiving a presentation about actions being considered by the state legislature, including 
recommendations included in the PA State House of Representatives’ 2019 Transportation 
Infrastructure Task Force Report. 
 


(List Continued Next Page)  







c. Preparing policy statements/comments from the CCMPO regarding state funding. 
 
d. Preparing policy statements/comments from the CCMPO regarding federal funding. 


 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the presentation and provide direction to staff about 
potential actions for future meetings. 
 
 Presented by: Tom Zilla, CRPA 
 


Action:   Direction to MPO staff about discussion topics and potential actions 
for future meetings.  







FEBRUARY 25, 2020 MEETING 
 


ITEM 8 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. Future Meeting Dates 
 
 a. Technical Committee:  TENTATIVE 
      Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 9:30 a.m. 
      College Township Municipal Building 


 Report from University Park Airport Manager 
 Federal and state funding outlook 
 LRTP 2050 
 Final Draft 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 


 
 b. Coordinating Committee: TENTATIVE 
      Tuesday, March 24, 2020, 6:00 p.m. 
      Patton Township Municipal Building 


 Mobility Integration presentation from CATA 
 Federal and state funding outlook 
 LRTP 2050 
 Final Draft 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 


 
2. The CCMPO’s Procedures for Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Revisions allow project 


sponsors (typically PennDOT and CATA) to make administrative modifications that change funding 
on the TIP without formal approval by the Coordinating Committee. The Procedures specify that the 
administrative modifications be reported to the CCMPO for information purposes. There have a been 
a few minor modifications completed for the 2019-2022 TIP since November 2019. A list of these 
modifications will be provided in a future agenda packet.  


 
3. Attached is correspondence received from the Centre County Airport Authority requesting that the 


CCMPO include the proposed Airport Connector Road project on the new LRTP 2050. A few other 
organizations have expressed interest in having the Airport Road Connector project included on the 
new LRTP during the stakeholder input meetings held in 2018 and 2019, and that information has 
been conveyed to the consultant team working on the technical elements of the LRTP. 


 
4. CRPA GIS Specialist Steve Arnold has prepared an “MPO 101” online story map that provides a 


summary of the responsibilities, structure, and activities of the CCMPO. To view the “MPO 101” 
story map, visit CRPA’s Interactive Online Maps page at 
https://centrecog.maps.arcgis.com/home/index.html , use the arrows to scroll over, and click on the 
“MPO 101” tab. Staff will periodically update the story map, so comments from MPO Committee 
members and other stakeholders are welcome! 


 
5. Press releases from PennDOT about road and bridge construction projects in Centre County are 


posted on the “Project Updates” page of the CCMPO’s website and shared on the MPO’s Facebook 
page. MPO staff also typically shares PennDOT’s press releases with CCMPO Committee members 
and emergency response providers for projects in their respective areas of the County. For 
information specific to the Route 322 Potters Mills Gap and Atherton Street Drainage/Repaving 
projects, visit PennDOT District 2-0’s website at https://www.penndot.gov/RegionalOffices/district-
2/ConstructionsProjectsAndRoadwork/Pages/default.aspx . 


 
(Continued)  







6. For information about PennDOT’s Local Technical Assistance Program (LTAP) training courses, as 
sponsored by the SEDA-COG MPO, visit http://seda-cog.org/departments/transportation/local-
technical-assistance-program/ . 


 
7. For information about the PennDOT Connects initiative, visit the Connects support hub at 


https://paconnects.org/ . Information about technical assistance available to municipalities is 
posted on the Connects support hub. The MPO staff encourages municipalities to take 
advantage of these opportunities for technical assistance. 


 
8. For information about the “Drive Forward” coalition formed by the Chamber of Business and 


Industry of Centre County (CBICC) with the support of the CCMPO, visit the Drive Forward website 
at www.driveforwardcc.com. 


 
9. CCMPO staff contact information: 
 
 Centre Regional Planning Agency  Telephone: 814-231-3050 
 2643 Gateway Drive   Fax:  814-231-3083 
 State College, PA  16801 
 
  Jim May, Director    jmay@crcog.net  
  Tom Zilla, Principal Transportation Planner  tzilla@crcog.net 
  Trish Meek, Senior Transportation Planner  tmeek@crcog.net 
  Greg Kausch, Senior Transportation Planner  gkausch@crcog.net  
  Pam Adams, Sustainability Planner   padams@crcog.net  
  Marcella Laird, Office Manager   mlaird@crcog.net 
 
 Centre County Plng & Community Dev. Office Telephone: 814-355-6791 
 420 Holmes Street – Willowbank Office Building  Fax:  814-355-8661 
 Bellefonte, PA  16823 
 
  Ray Stolinas, Director    rjstolinas@centrecountypa.gov  
  Mike Bloom, Assistant Director   dmbloom@centrecountypa.gov  
  Anne Messner, Senior Transportation Planner ammessner@centrecountypa.gov  
 
 On the web at www.ccmpo.net  
 
 Like and share the CCMPO’s Facebook page at https://www.facebook.com/centrecountyMPO/ 


for meeting announcements, project updates, PennDOT’s Local Technical Assistance Program 
(LTAP) announcements, District 2-0 press releases, and relevant items from PennDOT’s 
Facebook page. 








 


  


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 
TO:   David Pribulka, Township Manager 


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
FROM:  David Modricker P.E., Public Works Director  


    
    
   Lance King, Township Arborist 
      
DATE:  February 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: Termination of Contract 2019-C15 Street Tree Pruning between Ferguson 


Township and Nature’s Canopy and Award of Contract 2019-C15 to Cutting 
Edge Tree Professionals 


 
As reported in November, the following bids were opened publicly for the street tree pruning 
contract on November 12, 2019: 
 
Bartlett Tree Experts    $32,340 
Dincher and Dincher Tree Surgeons, Inc. $24,360 
Cutting Edge Tree Professionals   $17,264 
Nature’s Canopy     $15,340 
 
Work includes trimming 767 street trees in Saybrook, Greenleaf Manor, and Pine Grove Mills 
neighborhoods. 
 
The budget for this work is $41,250 with funding code 01.400.455.450. The estimate for this 
work was $42,185 based on an average unit cost of $55/tree trimmed. 
 
In November, the Board of Supervisors awarded the contract to Nature’s Canopy. An award 
letter was sent in November with a Notice to Proceed with work no later than January 1, 2020 
and complete all work in 90 days. Work has not started. There is no guarantee that work will 
start in the near future, nor that work on oak trees will be completed within the prescribed 
timeframe to prevent the spread of oak wilt. Staff contacted the second low bidder and they 
can complete the work in a timely manner. 
 
Therefore, I recommend that the Board of Supervisors terminate the contract with 
Nature’s Canopy in accord with the termination clauses of the contract and award 
Contract 2019-C15 Street Tree Pruning to Cutting Edge Tree Professionals in the 
amount of $17,264. 
 
File: Contract 2019-C15 Street Tree Pruning 








 


  
 


Manager’s Report 
March 2, 2020 


 
1. Staff is finalizing the details for a series of public engagement seminars on the proposed 


stormwater management fee. Postcard invitations will be sent to all property owners in 
the Township inviting residents, business owners, and others to attend an open house 
tentatively scheduled for Thursday, April 16th in the Park Forest Middle School Auditorium. 
More details will be forthcoming. 
 


2. Provided with my report is a letter from the Centre County District Attorney’s office inviting 
the Board to attend an annual update from the Centre County Drug Task Force on 
Wednesday, March 18th at 6:00 p.m. in Sundman Hall at the American Philatelic Society 
(100 Match Factor Place in Bellefonte). Board members interested in attending should 
RSVP to Nicole Courter at ncourter@centreda.org. 
 


3. Provided with my report is a letter from Congressman Mike Turzai, Speaker of the 
Pennsylvania House of Representatives, providing a link to an article describing the 
redistricting process that will follow the 2020 Census. This item is included for 
informational purposes only at this time.  
 


4. The draft 2020 Ferguson Township Budget Executive Summary is completed, and design 
is being finalized. The document will be published on the Township’s website and 
available for inspection at the Township office. It will be used to supplement the 
Township’s Annual Operating Budget in its submission to GFOA for the Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award. The summary has also received a Governor’s Award for 
Local Government Excellence in 2018. 
 


5. A quarterly meeting of the Police Pension Committee was held on Tuesday, February 
25th. Generally, the portfolio is performing beyond expectations given the market 
conditions, and no changes are being made to the investment policy statement. The plan 
continues to progress toward full funding. Mr. Miller is the Board representative on the 
committee and has available the quarterly report provided by PNC Bank for any board 
members interested in reviewing the document. 
 


6. I attended a quarterly meeting of the PennPRIME Worker’s Compensation and Liability 
Insurance Trusts on Friday, February 28th. A verbal report on the meeting topics will be 
provided.  
 


7. I will be participating on a panel on local government with other government officials on 
March 26th at the Bellefonte High School Auditorium. A flier has been provided with my 
report. The event is being sponsored by the League of Women Voters of Centre County. 
  















Thursday March 26, 2020,  7:00 pm
Bellefonte High School Auditorium 


318 North Allegheny Street, Bellefonte, PA


Guest panelists include: 
Amy Farkas, Harris Township Manager


Don Holderman, Bellefonte Borough Assistant Manager
Ed LeClear, State College Borough Director of Planning


Dave Pribulka, Ferguson Township Manager 
Douglas Shontz, State College Borough


Deanna Behring, moderator


Our panel will present information about:
• The Ins and Outs of How Local Government Functions in PA


• The Planning Process 
• How You Can Become Involved In Local Government


There will be time for Q&A so bring your questions for the experts to answer.


Please join us!


Local Government 101
A Town Hall


This free Town Hall is the second in a series to be presented across Centre County to celebrate the 
100th anniversary of U.S. Constitution 19th amendment and the 100th birthday of the League of Women Voters.








 


 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


TOWNSHIP	OF	FERGUSON	
3147 Research Drive   State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us


 


 


 


 


 


TO:  Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 


FROM:  Ron Seybert, Jr., P.E., Township Engineer 


DATE:  February 25, 2020 


SUBJECT:  AWARD OF 2020-C19, Proposal and Contract for Signal Equipment 
 
Bids were opened publicly for 2020-C19 ‘Proposal and Contract for Signal Equipment’ at 2:00 
pm on Tuesday February 25, 2020 and read aloud.  The bid opening was attended by 
Ferguson Township staff: Ryan Scanlan, Summer Krape, and myself.  The bid was advertised 
in the Centre Daily Times on February 17, 2020 and the invitation to bid was sent to qualified 
suppliers. 
 
The materials purchased under this contract will be used by Township employees to install 
radar detection at six traffic signals which include: 
 


1. Blue Course Drive at Havershire Boulevard 
2. Blue Course Drive at Circleville Road 
3. Blue Course Drive at Martin Street 
4. Science Park Road at Pine Hall Road 
5. Science Park Road at Raytheon Driveway 
6. Science Park Road at Old Gatesburg Road 


 
The digital radar detectors will replace both existing loop detectors and video detectors that 
have limitations on detection.  In addition to being more reliable, the radar detectors also 
provide real time detection to help reduce the incidents of dilemma zone and can detect both 
motorcycles and bicycles. 
 
Due to the unique nature of the material, only one bid was received from Signal Control 
Products, Inc. in the amount of $190,387.00.  The estimate for the materials is $190,418.00.  
A copy of the bid tabulation is attached. The budget includes $200,000 to complete this work, 
80% of which is reimbursed by PennDOT through Green Light Go and ARLE grants up to 
$160,000.   


 
I recommend that the Board of Supervisors award this material contract to Signal Control 
Products in the amount of $190,418.00. 
 
Attachments: 2020-C19 Bid Tabulation 
 
Copy: D. Pribulka 


D. Modricker 
2020-C19 File 







2020‐C19 Proposal and Contract for Signal Equipment


Bid Tabulation


ITEM
No.


UNIT
DESCRIPTION


TOTAL 
QTY


UNIT
PRICE


Extended Total
UNIT


PRICE
Extended Total


1 Stop Bar Detector 19 $4,902.00 $93,138.00 $4,902.00 $93,138.00


2 Advanced Detector 10 $4,731.00 $47,310.00 $4,731.00 $47,310.00


3 Detector Bracket 29 $218.50 $6,336.50 $218.00 $6,322.00


4 60 ft sensor cable with connector 12 $294.50 $3,534.00 $294.00 $3,528.00


5 100 ft sensor cable with connector 17 $418.00 $7,106.00 $418.00 $7,106.00


6 500 ft spool sensor cable 5 $375.25 $1,876.25 $375.00 $1,875.00


7 Junction Box 27 $204.25 $5,514.75 $204.00 $5,508.00


8
Cabinet Interface Unit with connector 
to controller


5 $5,120.50 $25,602.50 $5,120.00 $25,600.00


TOTAL


Engineer's Estimate


$190,418.00


Materials List Signal Control Products, Inc.


$190,387.00


Page 1 of 1








 


 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454 


www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


  
 


Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors 


for the regular meeting on March 3, 2020 


1. Renovations to Township Administration Building: Renovations are substantially complete 
in Phase 2 (admin, finance, engineering/planning and zoning) and relocated employees have 
moved back into renovated office spaces. Work continues in Phase 3 (lobby, hallway, 
custodian area, police storage room).  


2. Public Works Maintenance Facility– A pre-construction meeting/job progress meeting is 
scheduled for March 3rd and progress meetings will be held every 2 weeks thereafter. A LEED 
design team/owner meeting will be held on March 3rd. A pre-construction stormwater meeting 
will be held on March 4th. Work is scheduled to start March 16, 2020, pending adequate 
weather conditions. A ground-breaking ceremony is planned. 


3. Stormwater Fee Study Phase 2 – Staff and the consultant, WOOD, have addressed 
Stormwater Advisory Committee (SAC) concerns, reviewed the cost of service, better defined 
service areas and refined the scope of service to reduce costs, revised the time period of cost 
distribution, and reviewed the effect on an anticipated fee structure. A final fee structure was 
not proposed to the SAC at their last meeting in 2019. Two additional meetings of the SAC are 
planned. The next SAC meeting is March 25th and one meeting time is to be determined in 
April. Once the SAC completes its work, the consultant will prepare a report for the BOS. 
Public outreach efforts are planned in the coming months including a public education event 
planned for April 16th from 7pm to 9pm at the Park Forest Middle School. 


4. Arborist and Ferguson Township Tree Commission – The FTTC meets on March 16th and 
agenda items are expected to include discussions on a draft tree preservation ordinance, 
adoption of bylaws for the group, and a report on the RFP for a tree canopy survey. 


5. Maintenance Section: Winter operations continue. When not performing winter operations the 
road crew has been repairing inlets, installing a water fountain and repairing a water line in 
Homestead Park, and completing various work orders, cleaning and repairing vehicles. 


6. Contract 2019-C15 Street Tree Pruning: This contract was awarded to Nature’s Canopy and 
includes pruning 767 street trees in Saybook, Greenleaf Manor, and Pine Grove Mills 
neighborhoods. Work was expected to start on February 10th in the Saybrook neighborhood 
but the contractor has delayed work and expects to start March 2nd. 


7. Contract 2020-C1 Street Improvement Project (portions of Blue Course Drive and 
Saratoga Drive) Improvements to sections of these two roads include inlet repairs, curb 
repairs, asphalt repairs and an asphalt overlay. An open house was held on February 18th from 
4pm to 6pm in the main meeting room of the Township building. Adjoining property owners 







 


 


 


were sent invitations to attend. Twelve residents signed in (C1 and C2), though it is believed 
more were in attendance. Residents that provided an email address will be sent project 
updates. A summary of resident’s comments is attached. The project is currently out to bid for 
a bid opening on March 17th. A geophysical survey of a portion of Saratoga Drive was 
conducted to better understand the geology and possible underlying cause of numerous 
“sinks” and address concerns during construction. 


8. Contract 2020-C2 Street Improvement Project (Dry Hollow Road, Deibler Road, portion 
of Whitehall Road) – Work includes base repair, asphalt milling, and paving a new asphalt 
wearing course on Whitehall Road from Timothy Lane to the County line. Some sections of 
guiderail will be replaced. Similar work is planned for a section of Deibler Road and Dry Hollow 
Road. A utility coordination meeting was held on January 31st. An open house was held on 
February 18th from 4pm to 6pm in the main meeting room of the Township building. Adjoining 
property owners were sent invitations to attend. Twelve residents signed in (C1 and C2), 
though it is believed more were in attendance. Residents that provided an email address will 
be sent project updates. A summary of resident’s comments is attached. The project is 
currently out to bid for a bid opening on March 17th. 


9. Contract 2020-C6 Curb and Ramp upgrades: This is an annual contract to update and 
replace curb ramps on sidewalks to meet ADA requirements on roads that receive 
microsurfacing. This contract is currently out to bid with a bid opening scheduled for March 
10th.  


10. Contract 2020-C7c Asphalt and Aggregate: A contract is let every year for asphalt and 
aggregate. The contract should be advertised in March for a bid opening in April. 


11. Contract 2020-C7a Fuel: Gas and Diesel will be bid in March for an anticipated award in April. 


12. Contract 2020-C8 Pavement Markings: Each year the Township bids painting lines and 
legends on our roads. A dozen municipalities piggyback on this popular contract. Bids will be 
opened on February 25th. See separate award recommendation memorandum. 


13. Contract 2020-C9 Microsurfacing: Microsurfacing is a pavement preservation technique and 
a contract is let annually. The contract is currently out to bid for an opening planned on March 
10th. This year the following roads are planned for microsurfacing: 


Road Name From Street To Street 
James Ave Stonebridge Stonebridge 
Red Lion Stonebridge Kings Ct 


Chownings Ct Red Lion Cul-De-Sac 
Williamsburg Red Lion Cul-De-Sac 


Kings Ct Williamsburg Cul-De-Sac 
Wetherburn Dr Williamsburg Stonebridge 


      
Aaron Dr N Atherton St Ent Twp Rd 


      
Horseshoe Cir Tadpole Tadpole 







 


 


 


      
Beaver Branch Rd Tadpole cul-de-sac 


      
Butz End E Beaver Ave 


W Beaver Ave Twp Line Corl St 
S Osmond St W Collge Ave Twp Line 


Hoy St W Collge Ave Highland Alley 
S Corl W Collge Ave Highland Alley 


      
Fairbrook W Whitehall Cul-de-sac 
Greenlee Fairbrook Cul-de-sac 


Beaverbook Fairbrook Cul-de-sac 
 


14. Contract 2020-C10 Bikepath and Parking Lot Sealcoat: This annual contract includes a 
double sealcoat to preserve the pavement life of bikepaths and parking lots. Other 
municipalities may piggyback on this contract from time to time. Design is in progress. The 
project should be bid March 10th. 


15. Contract 2020-C13 Street Tree Planting This work includes planting 43 street trees and was 
awarded to Luther Lawn Service LLC. A notice to proceed was issued subject to providing the 
required insurance certification and meeting with the Township Arborist for a pre-construction 
meeting. Tree planting is typically done in April. 


16. Contract 2020-C19 Traffic Signal Equipment: Certain traffic signal equipment was put out to 
bid, specifically radar detection equipment, to upgrade signals in accordance with our Green 
Light Go Grant. Bids will be opened on February 25th. FTPW will install the equipment. 


 


 







FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 


COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION FORM 


 


Date: October 15, 2019  ____________________________________________________________ 


 Name: Bruce Bender                                                                                             


Address: 6315 West Whitehall Road, Pennsylvania Furnace, PA 16865‐0074      


Tax Assessment Parcel: 24‐008A‐016     


Nature of Complaint: This complaint has a long history dating back to the upgrade of West Whitehall 


Road by PA DOT. The issue is a storm water discharge that has its source from a pipe beneath Johnson 


Road and includes water from the south side of West Whitehall Road. The discharge flows from the 


ROW to a property owned by Steven Bellows and then across the property of Jennifer Borigo and to the 


back yard of Mr. Bender’s property. The Bender property and adjacent Homan and Borigo properties 


will flood to as much as 3 feet in depth during periods of heavy runoff. This results in a need for Mr. 


Bender to pump the flood waters from his property to the adjacent Metzger property to preclude 


basement flooding. There are also impacts from this flooding to on‐lot sewage disposal systems at the 


Bender residence as well as to the Borigo property to the west and Homan property to the east. 


 


Storm Water Investigation 


I met with Mr. Bender on 10/15/2019. We looked at the location of the culvert system at the West 


Whitehall/Johnson Road intersection. Mr.  Bender presented several potential solutions that would 


eliminate flooding in his back yard. These include: 


1) Install a pipe from the low point in the Bender back yard to the Metzger property that would 


allow the water to drain to the pond on the Metzger property and prevent flooding on the 


Bender property. This solution would require an agreement between Mr. Metzger and Mr. 


Bender and can occur without concurrence by the township. 


2) Divert the storm water as it exits the culvert beneath Johnson Road to the west so that it 


discharges further west unto the Metzger property rather than the existing path across the 


Steven Bellows property. 


3) Divert the storm water north along the west side of Johnson Road approximately 100 feet to a 


second culvert that discharges across the Metzger property. This plan will only work if the ditch 







gradient will allow for flow to the north. In addition the hydraulics of the pipes would need to be 


reviewed. Finally the question of the Township moving the discharge from an existing private 


property owner to a second private property would need to be assessed.  


4) Maintain drainage on the south side of West Whitehall Road instead of crossing under West


Whitehall and Johnson Road.


5) Placement of a culvert from the existing discharge point that drains toward the Bender property


and crossing beneath West Whitehall to the drainage ditch on the southern side of West


Whitehall. This culvert would be on the order of 226 feet in length.


 Township staff scheduled a meeting with Fred Metzger the owner of the adjoining property on 


2/2/2020. Mr. Metzger was concerned with increased surface run off on his property as he indicated 


that the culvert beneath Johnson Road is a source of surface runoff to his septic system absorption area. 


He indicated that during high flow time frames that ponding in the area of his septic absorption field can 


be a problem. He also had concerns regarding the pumping from the adjacent Bender property during 


flooding events that may increase flow of surface water to the area of his absorption field.     


Based upon analysis and review of the options presented above the first option is the most acceptable in 


that it would allow for removing the flood potential on the Bender property and allow flow to be 


diverted to the stream across the Metzger property but away from the Metzger Septic system. This 


option is not something that the Township can direct or control as it is between private owners on 


private property.  


Options 2 and 3 are not considered viable as the township would not consider moving increased surface 


runoff to a private property where it would impact the on lot sewage system absorption area already in 


place. 


Township staff has looked at a preliminary cost estimate for option 5 and the total cost was estimated at 


$45,000.  Option 5 was considered too costly to be included within the upcoming road project by 


Township management.    Option 4 was also looked at, but the cost was estimated, in the preliminary 


review, as more costly than option 5.        







- A Home Rule Municipality -


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801


Telephone: 814-238-4651 •  Fax: 814-238-3454
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 


 


TO: David Modricker, Public Work Director 


 FROM: Ryan Scanlan, Assistant Township Engineer 


 DATE:  February 26, 2020 


SUBJECT: 2020-C1 & 2020-C2 Street Improvement Projects 
Open House Summary 


On Tuesday February 18, 2020, an open house was held for 2020-C1 and 2020-C2 Street 


Improvement Projects. The open house was held in the main meeting room of the 


Ferguson Township building from 4:30 PM to 6:00 PM.   


Property owners that abut the streets to be repaved were invited to the open house by 


letter in the mail. In addition, the Supervisors were copied on the invitation to the open 


house. Columbia Gas did not attend as they determined they would not be involved with 


this project. 


The streets planned to be repaved that were displayed at the open house included Blue 


Course and Saratoga Drive, and portions of Deibler, Dry Hollow, and West Whitehall 


Roads. 


11 people signed the sign-in sheet at the open house. A copy of the sign-in sheet is 


attached. Two (2) individuals provided comments forms which are also attached. One 


individual could not attend the open house but sent an e-mail with concerns. A copy of her 


e-mail is also attached.


In general, two primary concerns were voiced. The first was vehicle speeds on W. 


Whitehall are fast and additional enforcement should be considered.  


The second was a concern with surface water, sheet flowing onto West Whitehall from the 


north-east corner of Whitehall and Deibler Road. Part of this concern has already been 


implemented into the design and this section of road may benefit by placing a crown at 


the centerline along this section of roadway. Ferguson Township staff will review section 


of roadway prior to construction and address potential issues during construction.  


Attachments: Sign-In Sheet 
Comment Forms 
Casey Salyards email 


Copy:  2020-C1 Correspondence 
2020-C2 Correspondence 







FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 2020-C1 ANO 2020-C2 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 


OPEN HOUSE FEBRUARY 18, 2020 
SIGN IN SHEET (PLEASE SIGN IN) 


(If you provide your e-mail address, you will receive project updates during cons/ruction via e-mail.) 


I NAME 


fl, :- i.(/:11r1,; 
I i ..... 


. l 'C- f•."\IJi


-
J Oe. -:1"\ttf'(( 


/)w1J 
' 


• .L � ... ,, �. -
-\ 


M),� I h-
"' ,J 


·13.{. .,, -4 , I 'l{V e < ½L· r


/+L ft?/t 1 
fv§§P?-'1rtA 


D{A,,J--�t- �- 0 e,Cfa-/v


,yf,1.t, p <-";, 
Z,, '\ .. "?"'\.


STREET ADDRESS 


_, 7-:_ ).) ll\. 


I\,...�\ L-i I I/I'� I 1 .// .- '-- lf , vv - 'li,l, l 
�Ll� VJ w�.�\l �00�\


P-t\ l="" ucro..ce.) {)-A l(D�<.o-:,-


?Jo q� ({cf 
. - \ Pcl F (,,VV/'\. u,0.__.J /{. I l b� � 


bto� L,V .xilt»l� 
;,;�'-b�.��r f_c_ 


2. 7 g t? J/1,- /7 I /V {.:: C. I,., y r-I( iJ


tit Ohy hoaorv R {Jl 


� ? I � t.,(I . U/ ;/ T t:: /I-"! t.. l ,@


PHONE (ootional) 


(t I 


. 


EMAIL (optional) 

































 
 


- A Home Rule Municipality - 


 


TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 
 


PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Tuesday, March 2, 2020 


 


PLANNING COMMISSION 
Planning Commission will be meeting Monday, March 9, 2020 to review three land development plans 
and an application for a modification/waiver. 


LAND DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND OTHER PROJECTS 


1. Active Plans are listed below for the Board of Supervisors (2/26/20). 
o Whitehall Road Regional Park (intersection of Blue Course Drive and Whitehall Road) 
o Harner Farm Subdivision (24-004-067 and replot 24-004-067C) 
o Orchard View Subdivision (24-004-,067-,0000) 
o Whitehall Road Sheetz Land Development Plan (24-004-067 and replot 24-004-067C) 


2. PZ Director met with residents regarding the Terraced Streetscape District. 
3. PZ Director attended the Affordable Housing Opportunities in Communities webinar hosted by 


CRPA. 
4. PZ Director met with the Manager and the Assistant to the Manager to review the 2009 RPOS 


Plan and discuss an action plan for drafting a RFP. 
5. PZ Director and Community Planner attended the Land Use and Development Mixer hosted by 


Penn State University. 
6. PZ Staff met to review Sign Ordinance amendments. 


UPCOMING ZONING HEARING BOARD MEETINGS 


1. The Zoning Hearing Board will be meeting March 24, 2020 to review a variance request for a 
property at 3765 West College Avenue (RA—Rural Agricultural/ COD—Corridor Overlay District). 
The applicant, The Islamic Society of Central PA, is requesting a variance from Chapter 27-701; Ch. 
27-701.C.1; Ch. 27-701.I; Ch. 27-701.H: Floodplain Conservation Regulations. 


2. The Zoning Hearing Board met February 25, 2020 to review an Appeal of Decision and Variance 
request for 900, 904, 906, 912, 916 West College Avenue (TS—Terraced Streetscape District). The 
applicant, York Acquisitions LLC, is appealing the determination of the Zoning Administrator that 
the first floor cannot be used for parking (Ch. 27-304.B.b.). York Acquisitions is also requesting a 
variance to be permitted to have parking on the first floor of the building (Ch. 27-304.B.3.b.). The 
Zoning Hearing Board denied the Appeal of Decision and granted the Variance request for 900, 
904, 906, 912, 916 West College Avenue (TS—Terraced Streetscape District). 








PAYMENT APPLICATION 
TO: Ferguson Township 


3147 Research Drive 
State College, PA 16801 
Attn: 


FROM: Triangle Fire Proteqjon Joe 
20 Roadway Drive 
Carlisle, PA 17015 


FOR: Ferguson Township Bldg Renovations 


CONTRACTOR'S SUMMARY OF WORK 


Application is made for payment as shown below. 
Continuation Page is attached. 


1. CONTRACT AMOUNT


2. SUM OF ALL CHANGE ORDERS


3. CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT (Line 1 +/- 2) 


4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED
(Column G on Continuation Page)


5. RETAINAGE: 


3393,s--3 Page 1 


PROJECT 19-7288-Ferguson Township Bldg APPLICATION# 3 Distribution to: NAME AND Ferguson Township Building Renovations . 


LOCATION: PERIOD THRU 01/31/2020 0 OWNER
3147 Research Drive PROJECT#s: 
State College, PA 16801 0 CONSTRUCTION 


08/23/2019 MANAGER 
ARCHITECT: DATE OF CONTRACT: 


□ ARCHITECT
0 CONTRACTOR


CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: □ 


$28,760.00 


$0.00 


$28,760.00 


$14,000.00 


Contractor's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applied for, 
that: (1) the Work has been performed as required in the Contract Documents, (2) all sums previously 
paid to Contractor under the Contract have been used to pay Contractor's costs for labor, materials 
and other obligations under the Contract for Work previously paid for, and (3) Contractor is legally 
""""' to th• p,,ment 


� 


CONTRACTOR: Triangle Fire Protection, Inc. 


� / By: //' "7 Date: 
/ 


01/16/2020 


State of: 
Mark E. -Potteiger, Pres�t


Pennsylvania COMr✓iON',/\'EALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
I NOTARIAL SEAL 


County of: Cumberland I D:ane V. r/,unn. Notary Public 
Subscribed and sworn to before \ t,'.iddlesex T·-:,p., Cumberland County


! V,•1 C.::;r.mi5sior. Excircs April V,, 202:J
a. 10.00% of Completed Work $1,400.00 me this 16th day of January 2020 ,_.�,;�::"< ;�::,:�:�•101,1.0 .• ss.;,,·;:::1.>.1i:.CN e:= ,:era= ::S


(Columns D + E on Continuation Page) 
b. 0.00% of Material Stored $0.00 


(Column F on Continuation Page)
Total Retainage (Line Sa+ 5b or 


Column I on Continuation Page) $1,400.00 
C5. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED LESS RETAINAGE $12,600.00 


(Line 4 minus Line 5 Total) 


7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT APPLICATIONS $8,100.00 


8. PAYMEITTDUEO\C;_J,�� I -> ,..,.._,. I 
9. BAL6.NCE TO COMPLETION �t � 1,o\<\,-v�-z_J 


(Line 3 minus Line 6) 3,0, • � $16,160.00 


SUMMARY OF CHANGE ORDERS ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 
Total changes approved in 
previous months $0.00 $0.00 


Total approved this month $0.00 $0.00 
TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 


NET CHANGES $0.00 


PAYMENT APPLICATION 


Notary Public: Diane V. Mann 


N�fJU.� My Commission Expires: April 14, 2020 


CERTIFICATION 


The Construction Manager and Architect's signatures below are their assurance to Otmer, concerning 
the payment herein applied for, that: (1) they have inspected the Work represented by this 
Application, (2) sucn Work has been completed to the extent indicated in this Application, and the 
quality of workmanship and materials conforms with the Contract Documents, (3) this Application for 
Payment accurately states the amount of Work completed and payment due therefor, and (4) 
Construction Manager and Architect know of no reason why payment should not be made. 


CERTIFIED AMOUNT ......................................................................................... '3;: :4;, S-C() , oo


(If the certified amount is different from the payment due, you should attach an explanation. Initial all 
the figures that are changed to match the certified amount) 


CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
By: Date: 
ARCHITECT: 


2-/\7 /zo By: ,L{ p-..i\ � /-=- Date: 
Neither this Ap�tion nor payment applied for herein is assignable or negotiable. Payment shall be 
made only to Contractor, and is without prejudice to any rights of Owner or Contractor under the 
Contract Documents or otherwise. 


Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 







CONTINUATION PAGE 


Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached. 


A B C 


PROJECT: 


D 


19-7288-FerJ;JUSOn Township Bldg 


Ferguson Township Buikling Renovations 


E F 


COMPLETED WORK STORED 


Page 2 of 3 


APPLICATION#: 


DATE OF APPLICATION: 


PERIOD THRU: 


PROJECT#s: 


G H 


TOTAL % BALANCE 


3 


01/16/2020 


01/31/2020 


I 


ITEM# WORK DESCRIPTION 
SCHEDULED 


AMOUNT AMOUNT MATERIALS COMPLETED ANO COMP. TO RETAINAGE 
AMOUNT 


PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD (NOT IN D OR E) STORED (G/C) COMPLETION (If Variable) 


PERIODS {D + E + F) (C-G) 


1 Fire Sprinkler Work $28,760.00 $9,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 49% $14,760.00 $1,400.00 


SUB-TOTALS so.oo I $0.00 I so.oo I $0.00 I $0.00 I SO.DO l 


CONTINUATION PAGE Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 







CONTINUATION PAGE 


Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached. 


A B C 


PROJECT: 


D 


19-7288-Ferguson Township Bldg 


Ferguson Township Building Renovations 


E F 


COMPLETED WORK STORED 


Page 3 of 3 


APPUCA TION #-. 


DATE OF APPLICATION: 


PERIOD THRU: 


PROJECT#s: 


G H 


TOTAL % BALANCE 


3 


01/16/2020 


01/3112020 


I 


SCHEDULED 
ITEM# WORK DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT MATERIALS COMPLETED AND COMP. TO RETAINAGE 


(lf Variable) 
PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD (NOT IN O OR E) STORED (GI C) COMPLETION 


PERIODS (D + E + F) (C-G) 


TOTALS $28,760.00 $9,000.00 $5,000.00 $14,000.00 49% $14,760.00 $1,400.00 


CONTINUATION PAGE Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 








PAYMENT APPLICATION 
TO: Ferguson Township 


3147 Reasearch Drive 
State College, PA 16801-278 


FROM: PBCI-Allen Mecha�I & Electrical 
2746 west College Avenue 
State College, PA 16801 


FOR: Plmg Reno Ferguson Twsp Bldg 


CONTRACTOR'S SUMMARY OF WORK 


Application is made for payment as shown below. 
Continuation Page is attached. 


1. CONTRACT AMOUNT


2. SUM OF ALL CHANGE ORDERS 


3. CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT (Line 1 +/- 2) 


4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED 
(Column G on Continuation Page)


5. RETAINAGE: 


PROJECT Plmg Reno Ferguson Twsp Bldg APPLICATION# NAMEANO --EJauj. PERIOD THRU: LOCATION: 3147 Reasearch Drive PROJECT#s: 
State College, PA 16801-278 


ARCHITECT: ByOesign Consultants, Inc. DATE OF CONTRACT: 
1950 Market Street 
Camp Hill, PA 17011 


Page 1 


3 Distribution to: 
01/31/2020 □ OWNER
2019-C32 e O ARCHITECT 
09/16/2019 0 CONTRACTOR


□ 
□ 


Contractor's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applied for, 
that: (1) the Work has been performed as required in the Contract Documents, (2) all sums previously 
paid to Contractor under the Contract have been used to pay Contractor's costs for labor, materials 
and other obligations under the Contract for Work previously paid for, and (3) Contractor is legaNy 
entitled to this paymenl 


$16,150.00 CONT
�


n Mechanical & Electrical 


0��,bo.;io $0.00 B� ���
Date: 


$16,150.00 
State of: Pa;_., 


$14,015.20 
County of: Un� Common-alUI of Pennsylvania - Notary S8al 


Wendy Christine-Cortina, Notary Public 
Subscribed and sworn to before Centre County 


/'7-rh 
My oommission expires July 22. 2023 


a. 10.00% of Completed Work $1,401.52 me this day of Commission number 1292156 
(Columns D + Eon Continuation Page) :JO,.nua.,ry ;:}0,J-� _ �er, PennsylvanlaAssociationafNotades


b. 0.00% of Material Stored $0.00 Notary Public:� 1. ,.-.� 
(Column Fon Continuation Page) My Commission .. pires: affe:;>/o1...().;;l..3 


Total Retainage (Line 5a + 5b or 
Column l on Continuation Page) $1,401.52 ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATION 


6. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED LESS RETAINAGE $12,613.68 Architect's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applied for,
(Line 4 minus Line 5 Total) that: (1} Architect has inspected the Work represented by this Application; (2) such Work has been 


completed to the extent indicated in this Application, and the quality of workmanship and materials 7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT APPLICATIONS $10,796.40 conforms with the Contract Documents, (3) this Application for Payment accurately states the amount


I � $1,s11.2s 
1 


of Work completed and payment due therefor, and (4) Architect knows of no reason why payment 
should not be made. 8. PAYMENT DUE 0� � 


9. BALANCE TO COMPLETION �7.,01£) �o. t.te>q:Z�V 
. . Z.P,CERTIFIED AMOUNT ......................................................................................... � I , �,\ 1. --


(Line 3 minus Line 6) $3,536.32 


SUMMARY OF CHANGE ORDERS ADDITIONS 
Total changes approved in 
previous months $0.00 
Total approved this month $0.00 


TOTALS $0,00 
NET CHANGES $0.00 


PAYMENT APPLICATION 


2-0Li-3� 
DEDUCTIONS 


$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 


(If the certified amount is different from the payment due, you should attach an explanation. Initial all 
the figures that are changed to match the certified amount.) 


ARCH ITECT: 
By: -'-\ • !.. 1\ ··� L---_.,.---_,;,;, ,) 


Date: -·z .. ,/\{ /2.D
Neithetthis Appltl:ation nor payment applied for herein is assignable or negotiable, Payment shall be 
made only to Contractor, and is without prejudic:8 to any rights of Owner or Contractor under the 
Contract Documents or otherwise. 


Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 


·------·---·---------�---··--.. -... _, __ � ....... �. ,.,...,�,--, .. ,_�--·---







CONTINUATION PAGE 


Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached. 


A B C 


ITEM# WORK DESCRIPTION 
SCHEDULED 


AMOUNT 


1 Mobilize $365.00 


2 Shop Drawing $730.00 


3 Insulation $1,740.00 


4 Sterilization $182.00 


Pipe Testing $290.00 


6 Warranty S800.00 


7 Demolition $1,675.00 


8 Above Grade DI/IN $1,433.00 


9 Sub Grade DWV $2,960.00 


10 Domestic Water $2,410.00 


11 Plumbing Fixtures $3,565.00 


. 


TOTALS $16,150.00 


CONTINUATION PAGE 


PROJECT: 


D 


Plmg Reno Ferguson Twsp Bldg 


Plmg 


E F 


COMPLETED WORK STORED 


AMOUNT AMOUNT MATERIALS 


PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD (NOT IN D OR E) 


PERJODS 


$365.00 $0.00 $0.00 


$730.00 $0.00 $0.00 


$1,305.00 $348.00 SO.OD 


$0.00 $0.00 $0 .00 


$145.00 $116.00 $0.00 


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 


$1.675.00 $0.00 $0.00 


$1,074.75 $214.95 SO.DO 


$2,220.00 $444.00 SO.OD 


$1,807.50 $361.50 SO.DO 


$2,673.75 $534.75 $0.00 


$11,996.00 $2,019.20 $0.00 


Page 2 of 2 


APPLICATION#: 


DATE OF APPLICATION: 


PERIOD THRU: 


PROJECT#s: 


G H 


TOTAL % BALANCE 
COMPLETED AND COMP. TO 


STORED (GI C) COMPLETION 
(D + E + F) (C-G) 


$365.00 100% SO.OD 


$730.00 100% SO.OD 


$1,653.00 95% $87.00 


$0.00 0% S182.00 


$261.00 90% $29.00 


$0.00 0% S800.00 


$1,675.00 100% $0.00 


$1,289.70 90% $143.30 


$2,664.00 90% S296.00 


$2,169.00 90% S241.00 


S3,208.50 90% S356.50 


$14,015.20 87% $2,134.80 


3 


01/17/2020 


01/31/2020 


2019-C32 e 


RETAINAGE 
(If Variable) 


Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 


•----.h ______ ,._ ...... ��•--�-........ -'< •�-� ..... ..,._.....,,h,-�., ... ,,,�,6•�•---"�-'"•--�- ,."_.,,_ .. ,.,�•�-L-•->,#•"-'•-......... ,.�,.-,_-.._.-�-� ... ,,-S.,•-�• �-• , .. L••--•"-.0.•<•••u••---•--••••<-'�-�••••'-•-••·--•----•=-••--•�--�--..... -, ... , •.• ._,,,_,, .... -. ........ � .... •••----• ... -•>•�--.--N-,�,-7--~••· ·---�--�---








PAYMENT APPLICATION 
TO: Ferguson Township 


3147 Reasearch Drive 
State College, PA 16801-278 


FROM: PBCI-Allen Mechanical & Electrical 
2746 West College Avenue 
State College, PA 16801 


FOR: HVAC Reno Ferguson Twsp Bldg 


CONTRACTOR'S SUMMARY OF WORK 


Application is made for payment as shown below. 
Continuation Page is attached. 


1. CONTRACTAMOUNT 


2. SUM OF ALL CHANGE ORDERS 


3. CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT
4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED


{Column G on Continuation Page)


5. RETAINAGE:
a. 10.00% of Completed Won,;


(Line 1 +/- 2) 


(Columns D + E on Continuation Page) 
b. 10.00% of Material Stored


(Column F on Continuation Page)
Total Retainage (Line 5a + 5b or 


Column I on Continuation Page) 


PROJECT 
NAME AND 
LOCATION: 


HVAC Reno Ferguson TMp Bldg APPLICATION# 4 


WAC_ PERIOD THRU: 
3147 Research Drive State College, PA 16801- PROJECT#s: 


Page 1 


Distribution to: 


ARCHITECT: ByDesign Consultants, Inc 
1950 Man,;et Street 


DA TE OF CONTRACT: 


01/31/2020 □ OWNER
2019-C32b 


□ ARCHITECT 
0911612019 0 CONTRACTOR 


□ 
□ 


$9,518.26 


$0.00 


Camp Hill, PA 17011 


$127,470.00 


$0.00 


$127,470.00 
$95,182.55 


Contractor's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applled for, 
that: (1) the Work has been performed as required in the Contract Documents, (2) all sums previously 
paid to Contractor under the Contract have been used to pay Contractor's costs for labor, materials 
and other obligations under the Contract for Work previously paid for, and (3) Contractor is legally 
entitled to this payment. 


By: Date: o/!_'! /4o .,lO


State of: Pc;...., Commonwealth of Pennsylvania • Notary Seal 
C ty f. ,/""' r:::7") _ r-- Wendy Christine-Cortina, Notary Public oun o .  �,, 7/f.-,C. CentreCounty 
Subscribed and swam to before MycommissianexpiresJuly22,2023 


. //jf--/1 
Cornmissionnumber1292156 


me this day


�


of ' ' PennsytvanlaAssooatlon of Notaries 
Jo.n u_c..,..,-'1 ;;_a ;io 


Notary Public: 7Y/ � - --.----
My Commission E�s: 0'7 ";Jo,;,...3 


____ ss_,51_8_26_ I ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATION
6 . TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED LESS RETAINAGE $85,664.29 Architect's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applied for, 


{Line 4 minus Line 5 Tota0 that: (1) Architect has Inspected the Work represented by this Application, (2) such Work has been 
completed to the extent Indicated in this Application, and the quality of workmanship and materials 7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT APPLICATIONS S43,SB5.64 conforms with the Contract Documents, (3) this Application for Payment accurately states the amount 


'-.I. p • ----.. _________ of Work completed and payment due therefor, and (4) Architect knows of no reason why payment 
a. PAYMENT DUE C:>\(.. � � �'-' � � ---;ii' $41,978.65 ! should not be made. 


9. BALANCE TO COMPLETION z/1�l1P--iP °3-0. 0�.7�0 CERTIFIED AMOUNT .............................................................................. ........... �4l,t-tr.b, (..:,'2, 
(Line 3 minus Line 6) S41.805. 71 ZP(q-.,. '2. z_... b (If the certified amount is dffferent from Iha pa�ment due, you should attach an explanation. Initial all


1,..------------:-r------:--:----...... -��=,,.,(....,./��-,, the figures that are changed to match the certified amount.) 
I SUMMARY OF CHANGE ORDERS I ADDITIONS I DEDUCTIONS I 


Total changes approved in 
previous months 
Total approved this month 


TOTALS 
NET CHANGES 


PAYMENT APPLICATION 


$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 


$0.00 


$0.00 
$0.00 


ARCHITECT: 


By: /w 1\ ,.-;=::�--: Date: Z../ l 7 / Z]j 
Neit�r this Ap�ca.tion nor payment applied for herein is assignable or negotiable. Payment shall be 
made only to Contractor, and is without prejudice to any rights of Owner or Contractor under the 
Contract Documents or otherwise. 


Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 


_......,..._,._, ____ .....,,.,.........,_,.�,_, ---•-- •-•••--P�--,--·--.. -,,-........ �"-"'--��·-- ,,�, �-,,• .. �•F•"""''""''--� .. ,u.,�,,,,.,.,._�, ---F-----•-•--••••�-•--•-•H<\s-, .. -..,,,,,, ... ,,-..,,�■�----..--..r ---,-••"· ..... �-• •---��--•,-•�·•• '-'•••�---■� .......... ,�-......... , ... __ ,.., ___ , . .Y, ""''"''" ,, ___ ,_,,.,�_,,...,,.....,�--�---• .... ....,.,.._,._,..�PY·--••-----







CONTIN
°


UATION PAGE 


Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached. 


A B C 


ITEM# WORK DESCRIPTION SCHEDULED 
AMOUNT 


1 Mobilization $1,000.00 


2 Shop Drawings $2,000.00 


3 Demo $9,260.00 


4 Sheet Metal Fab & Install $18,308.00 


5 Mechanical Insulation $10,570.00 


6 T.A.B $6,700.00 


7 Duct Cleaning $15,320.00 


8 Equipment rentals $2,000.00 


9 GRDs & Install $13,107.00 


10 ATC $49,205.00 


TOTALS $127,470.00 


CONTINUATION PAGE 


PROJECT: 


D 


HVAC Reno Ferguson Twsp Bldg 
HVAC 


E F 
COMPLETED WORK STORED 


AMOUNT AMOUNT MATERIALS 
PREVIOUS THIS PERIOD (NOT IN D OR E) 
PERIODS 


$1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 


$2,000.00 $0.00 $0,00 


s2,na.oo $5,556.00 $0.00 


$3,661.60 $10,069.40 $0.00 


S2, 114.00 $5,813.50 $0.00 


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 


$3,830.00 $7,660.00 so.co 


$2,000.00 so.co 50.00 


$6,553.50 $5,242.80 S0.00 


$24,602.50 $12,301.25 so.co 


$48,539.60 $46,642.95 $0.00 


Page 2 of 2 


APPLICATION#: 
DATE OF APPLICATION: 


PERIOD THRU: 
PROJECT#s: 


G H 


TOTAL % BALANCE 
COMPLETED AND COMP. TO 


STORED (G/C) COMPLETION 
(D + E + F) (C-G) 


S1,000.00 100% S0.00 


$2,000.00 100% $0,00 


$8,334.00 90% $926.00 


$13,731.00 75% $4,577.00 


S?,927.50 75% $2,642.50 


S0.00 0% $6,700.00 


$11,490.00 75% $3,830.00 


$2,000.00 100% $0.00 


$11,796.30 90% $1,310.70 


$36,903.75 75% $12,301.25 


$95,182.55 75% $32,287.45 


4 
01/17/2020 
01/31/2020 
2019-C32b 


RETAINAGE 
(If Variable) 


Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document 


·-·-···--·----·-"""'"""'"-'·•·"·-· ....... -....... ______ , __ , .. ,,._ .. __ ,.. . ·--·-·--·---·-·-·-•---···--------·----·-·---··-------.. -·--• .
. .
,·---·' 


........ 
---· .. ·------.. ----.. -·-··"·--···• ....... , .. ---·-· .. --.-·------... --.--•-------·•---.. -·-··-----












APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT Customer #: 50054 Invoice#: 2001012 


To Owner: FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
3147 RESEARCH DRIVE 


Project: 19-118 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
ADMINISTRATION BLDG 


Application No. : 4 Distribution to c::::I Owner 


STATE COLLEGE. PA 16801


From Contractor: J C ORR & SON INC 
438 SEVENTH AVENUE 
ALTOONA, PA 16603


Contract For: 


Via Architect: 


CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 


Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract 
Continuation Sheet is attached. 


1. Original Contract Sum ............ .. ... ...... . 
2. Net Change By Change Order ...... ............. . 
3. Contract Sum To Date ....... .................. . 
4. Total Completed and Stored To Date .............. . 


5. Retainage:
a. 10.00% of Completed Work


b. 0.00% of Stored Material
$30,126.00 


$0.00 


Total Retainage .......................... . 


6. Total Earned Less Retainage ............... ... . 


7. Less Previous Certificates For Payments ....... ,., .. 
8. Current Payment Due -0�� 


$353,300.00 


$0.00 


$353,300.00 


$301,260.00 


$30,126.00 


$271,134.00 


$181,326.60 


� $89,807.40 


9. Balance To Finish, Plus Retainage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $82,166.00 


z../ I ict-zp;,1,o 3.� l\ 0tt 1�0 2--c) l � - e,;�v=t,, 
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY Additions Deductions 


Total changes approved 
$0.00 $0.00 in previous months by Owner 


Total Approved this Month $0.00 $0.00 


TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 


Net Changes By Change Order $0.00 


Period To: 1/31/2020 


Project Nos: 


Contract Date: 


c::::I Architect 
c:::J Contractor


c::J 
CJ 


The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, 
information, and belief, the work covered by this Application for Payment has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents . That all amounts have been 
paid by the Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were 
issued and payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown 
herein is now due. 


CONTRACTOR: J C ORR & SON INC 


We-'\ AA- c;;:?:
State ofV.nnsylvania . 


Date: 


Subscribed and sworn to before me this l ��
Notary Public: -----__ � /} 
My Commission expires: � -?' 


..9-- 17 -dQc?-0 


Counfy· of: Blair 
day -


- . 


Commonwealth of P nnsy!var.ia - Notary Seal 
1·amara Lan e. Nc·;lary Public 


Blair County 
My COM mission ex;:iires May 8, 2022 


CCtiridlt.:>SJbh 1.f0i�2697 
ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT" Member, P<>Mny:,-111'11.\AHociatlonofNotaries In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on oil-site observations and the data 
comprising the above application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of the 
Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed as indicated, 
the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Contractor 
is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED 


AMOUNT CERTIFIED $ 89,807.40 
( Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied. Initial a// figures on this Application and on the 
Ccntinua/ion Sheet that are changed to conform with the amount certified.) 


ARCHITECT: 


By:---4-7;,_! I ✓-� Date: 2./\-( /Z.TJ 
1/ 


This Certifidate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only.to the 
Contractor named herein . Issuance, payment, and acceptance of payment are without 
prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract . 







CONTINUATION SHEET 


Application and Certification for Payment, containing 
Contractor's signed certification is attached. 
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. 


Invoice#: 2001012 Contract: 19-118 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATION BLDG 


A 8 ! C 
I 


D E I F I


Item Description of Work Scheduled ! Work Comoleted I Materials 
No. Value From Previous This Period Presently 


Application In Place Stored 
(D+E) 


(Not in D or E) 


01 BOND 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 


02 MOBILIZATION 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 


03 INSURANCE 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 


04 GENERAL CONDITIONS 40,000.00 23,200.00 9,600.00 0.00 


05 PROJECT CLOSEOUT 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


06 BUILDING DEMOLITION 36,400.00 18,200.00 14,560.00 0.00 


07 CONCRETE SLAB PATCHING 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


08 ROUGH CARPENTRY 1,500.00 750.00 750.00 0.00 


09 MILLWORK 28,000.00 16,800.00 8,400.00 0.00 


10 BATT INSULATION 3,000.00 1,350.00 1,350.00 0.00 


1 "1 ROOFING & SHEET METAL 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 


12 SKYLIGHTS 3,800.00 3,344.00 456.00 0.00 


13 CAULKING 1,000.00 50,00 700.00 0.00 


14 DOORS & HARDWARE 55,000.00 48,400.00 1,100.00 0.00 


15 ACCESS PANELS 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 


16 TRANSACTION WINDOWS 12,000.00 6,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 


17 GLAZING 3,000.00 0.00 750.00 0.00 


18 WINDOW FILM 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 


19 LIGHT GAUGE FRAMING 20,000.00 10,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 


20 DRYWALL 25,000.00 12,500.00 10,000.00 0.00 


21 ACOUSTIC CEILINGS 25,000.00 10,000.00 12,500.00 0.00 


22 CERAMIC TILE 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


23 FLOORING 24,000.00 16,800.00 2,400.00 0.00 


24 EPOXY FLOORING 
I 


a,000.00 I 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 I 


25 PAINTING 20,000.00
1 


6,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 


26 TOILET ACCESSORIES 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


27 APPLIANCES 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 


28 ROLLING RECORD FILES 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.00 


29 EVIDENT CABINET 
! 


12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 


l I
\ 


I 


I 


Grand Totals I 353,300.00 197,194.00 104,066.00 0.00 


Page 2 of2 


Application No. : 4 


Application Date : 01/24/20 


To: 01/31/20 


Architect's Project No.: 


G ! H


Total % Balance 
Completed (G/C) To Finish 
and Stored (C-G) 


To Date 


(D+E+F) I 


3,000.00 I 100.00% 0.00! 


2,500.00. 100.00% 0.00 


5,000.00 100.00% 0.00 


32,800.00 82.00% 7,200.00 


0.00 0.00%, 2,500.00 


32,760.00 90.00% 3,640.00 


0.00 0.00% 6,000.00 


1,500.00 100.00% 0.00 


25,200.00 90.00% 2,800.00 


2,700.00 90.00% 300.00 


3,000.00 100.000/4 0.00 


3,800.00 100.00% 0.00 


750.00 75.00% 250.00 


49,500.00 90.00% 5,500.00 


300.00 100.00% 0.00 


9,000.00 75.00% 3,000.00 


750.00 25.00% 2,250.00 


5,000.00 100.00% 0.00 


18,000.00 90.00% 2,000.00 


22,500.00 90.00% 2,500.00 


22,500.00 90.00% 2,500.00 


0.00 0.00% 1,200.00 


19,200.00 80.00% 4,800.00 


8,000.00 100.0CY'/o 0.00 


15,000.00 75.00% 5,000.00 


0.00 0.0CY'lo 600.00 


2,000.00 100.0CY'/o 0.00 


4,500.00 100.0CY'/o 0.00 


12,000.00 100.0CY'/o 0.00 


301,260.00 I 85.27% 52,040.00 


I 


Retalnage 


300.00 


250.00 


500.00 


3,280.00 


0.00 


3,276.00 


0.00 


150.00 


2,520.00 


270.00 


300.00 


380.00 


75.00 


4,950.00 


30.00 


900.00 


75.00 


500.00 


1,800.00 


2,250.00 


2,250.00 


0.00 


1,920.00 


800.00 


1,500.00 


0,00 


200.00 


450.00 


1,200.00 


30,126.QQ 












APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT Customer #: 50054 Invoice#: 2001013 


To Owner: FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
3147 RESEARCH DRIVE 


Project: 19-118 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
ADMINISTRATION BLDG 


Application No. : 5 Distribution to : 
c.:J Owner 


c:::J Architect 
c:::J Contractor STATE COLLEGE, PA 16801 


From Contractor: JC ORR & SON INC 
438 SEVENTH AVENUE 


ALTOONA, PA 16603 
Contract For. 


Via Architect: 


CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 


Application is made tor payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract 
Continuation Sheet is attached. 


1. Original Contract Sum ....................... . 
2. Net Change By Change Order ................... . 
3. Contract Sum To Date ......................... . 


4. Total Completed and Stored To Date .... .......... . 


5. Retainage: 
a. 5.00"k of Completed Work


o. 0.00% of Stored Material
$15,063.00 


$0.00 


Total Retainage ................... . 


6. Total Earned Less Retainage .................. . 


7. less Previous Certificates For Paymentsd. �- ... 
_


8. Current Payment Due 6-��-�'\:'':VY"'�
\ 


9. Balance To Finish, Plus Retainage ............. . 


$353,3 00.00 
$609.79 


$353,9 09.79 
$3 01,2 60.00 


$15,063.00 


$286,19 7.00 


$2 71,134.00 
-7 s_1_s,os3.Cl0 


$67,712.79 


2.{ ) e l-z;o7,,,c) ;c, . L\v � ,l so 2-0 l q -C7:;J'uv
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY Additions Deductions 


Total changes approved 
$0.00 $0.00 in previous months by Owner 


Total Approved this Month $609.79 $0.00 


TOTALS $609.79 $0.00 


Net Changes By Change Order $609.79 


Period To: 1/31/2020 


Project Nos: 


Contract Date: 


c==i 
c=i 


The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, 
information, and belief, the work covered by this Application for Payment has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. That all amounts have been 
paid by the Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were 
issued and payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown 
herein is now due. 


CONTRACTOR: J C ORR & SON INC 


/\ � 


B�
c=


f\, ¼ v.: Da<e 


State JPennsylvania 


�-)7- �a-9 


Subscribed and sworn to befo is
�


) 
Notary Public: 
My Commission expires: .,. � ,. 


/l � 


dar of +<:'QA ·/; Q, e,;U:'1& (1
Commonwealth cl P•nnsylvania. Notary Seal ITamara Lar�e. No tar/ Public 


BlairCountv 
, , . - ::::C: < , _ . 7-" -....-- 1 My ::om mission �xpires Ma,· 8, 2022 • -Smrn1ss1on n�mber t,32697 


ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENTv r.i�mber.? onnf.ylva;..::s Auociaijon 01 Notaries
In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on o�site observations and t\le ,jata 
comprising the above application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of the 
Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, the Wor1<: has progressed as indicated, 
the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and the Contractor 
is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED 


AMOUNT CERTIFIED $ 15,063.00 


(Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied. Initial all figures on this Application and on the 
Continuation Sheet that are changed to conform with the amount certified.) 


ARCHITE
=.::
C


�
T:


��
--


By: £:ti>: r-�L:-::-:-. :::,. ; 77 
Date: 2./\ 7 I Z.D


This Certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the 
Contractor named herein. Issuance, payment, and acceptance of payment are without 
prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract. 







CONTINUATION SHEET 


Application and Certification for Payment, containing 
Contractor's signed certification is attached 
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply. 


Invoice# : 2001013 Contract: 19-118 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
A 8 l C D E ! F 


Item Description of Work Scheduled Work ComDleted i Materials i 
No. Value From Previous This Period Presently i 


Application In Place Stored 
(D+E) 


(Not in D or E) 
01 BOND 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 
02 MOBILIZATION 2,500.00 2,500.00i 0.00 0.00 
03 INSURANCE 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 
04 GENERAL CONDlTIONS 40,000.00 32,800.00 0.00: 0.001 
05 PROJECT CLOSEOUT 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo!
06 BUILDING DEMOLITION 36,400.00 32,760.00 0.00 0.00 1 


07 CONCRETE SLAB PATCHING 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
08 ROUGH CARPENTRY 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 
09 MILLWORK 28,000.00 25,200.00 0.00 0.00 
10 BATT INSULATION 3,000.00 2,100.001 0.00 0.00 
11 ROOFING & SHEET METAL 3,000.00 3,000.00; 0.00 0.00 
12 SKYLIGHTS 3,800.00 3,800.00 0.00 0.00 
13 CAULKING j 1,000.00 750.00 o.oo I 0.00 
14 DOORS & HARDWARE 55,000.00 49,500.00 0.00 0.00 
15 ACCESS PANELS 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00, 
16 TRANSACTION WINDOWS 12,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 o.ooi
17 GLAZING 3,000.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 
18 WINDOW FILM 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 
19 LIGHT GAUGE FRAMING 20,000.00 18,000.00 0.00 0.00 
20 DRYWALL 25,000.00 22,500.00\ 0.00 0.00 
21 ACOUSTIC CEILINGS 25,000.00 


' 
22,500.00i 0.00 0.00 


22 CERAMIC TILE 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
23 FLOORING i 24,000.00 19,200.00 0.00 0.00 
24 EPOXY FLOORING ' 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 o.ooi
25 PAINTING 20,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 
26 TOILET ACCESSORIES 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
27 APPLIANCES 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 
28 ROLLING RECORD FILES 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 0.00 
29 EVIDENT CABINET 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 
30 GC-01 ADDTL WINDOW FILM 609.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 


' 


! j
! 


353,909.79 i Grand Totals i 301,260.00 0.00 0.00 i 


Application No. 
Application Date : 


To: 
Architect's Project No.: 


G i 


Total % ' 


Completed (G/C) 
and Stored 


To Date 


(D+E+F) 


3,000.00 100.00% 
2,500.00 100.00% 
5,000.00 100.00% 


32,800.00 82.00% I
0.00 0.00% 


32,760.00 90.00% 
0.00 0.00% 


1,500.00 100.00% 
25,200.00 90.00% 


2,700.00 90.00% 
3,000.00 100.00"/o 
3,800.00 100.00"/o 


750.00 75.00"/o 
49,500.00 90.00% 


300.00 100.00"/o 
9,000.00 75.00% 


750.QQ 25.00% 
5,000.00 100.00% 


18,000.00 90.00% 
22,500.00 90.00% 
22,500.00 90.00% 


0.00 0.00"/o 
19,200.00 80.00% 


8,000.00 100.00% 
15,000.00: 75.00% 


0.00 0.00% 
2,000.00 100.00% 
4,500.00 100.00"/o 


12,000.00 100.00"/o 
0.00 0.00% 


I 


301,260.00 85.12% 


Page 2 of2 


5 
01/31/20 


01/31/20 


H 


Balance 


To Finish 
(C-G) 


' 
I 


0.00 
0.00 
0.00 


7,200.00 
2,500.00 
3,640.00 
6,000.00 


0.00 1 


2,800.00 
300.00 


0.00 
0.00 


250.00 
5,500.00 


0.00 
3,000.00 
2,250.00: 


0.00. 
2,000.00 
2,500.00 
2,500.00 
1,200.00 
4,800.00 


0.00 
5,000.00 


600.00 
0.001, 
0.00 
0.00 


609.79 


52,649.79 


I 
Retainage 


150.00 
125.00 
250.00 


1,640.00 
0.00 


1,638.00 
0.00 


75.00 
1,260.00 


135.00 
150.00 
190.00 


37.50 
2,475.00 


15.00 
450.00 


37.50 
250.00 
900.00 


1,125.00 
1,125.00 


0.00 
960.00 
400.00 
750.00 


0.00 
100.00 
225.00 
600.00 


0.00 


I 


15,063.00 












22


Suburban Park Master Plan Update 


Ferguson Township, Centre County, Pennsylvania 



dpribulka

Typewritten Text












RESOLUTION PAGE Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
www.dcnr.state.pa.us/grants


DCNR-2018-C2P2-19 Applicant Information (* indicates required information)


Applicant/Grantee Legal Name:  FERGUSON TOWNSHIP Web Application ID:  2001664


Project Title:  Suburbarn Park Master Plan Update Phase 1


WHEREAS, FERGUSON TOWNSHIP ("Applicant") desires to undertake the project, "Suburbarn Park Master Plan 
Update Phase 1" ("Project Title"); and


WHEREAS, the applicant desires to receive from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (“Department”) 
a grant for the purpose of carrying out this project; and


WHEREAS, the application package includes a document entitled “Terms and Conditions of Grant” and


WHEREAS, the applicant understands that the contents of the document entitled "Terms and Conditions of Grant," 
including appendices referred to therein, will become the terms and conditions of a Grant Agreement between the 
applicant and the Department if the applicant is awarded a grant; and


NOW THEREFORE, it is resolved that:


1. The grant application may be electronically signed on behalf of the applicant by "David Pribulka" who, at the 
time of signing, has a TITLE of "Township Manager" and the email address of 
"dpribulka@twp.ferguson.pa.us".


2. If this Official signed the Grant Application Electronic Authorization prior to the passage of this Resolution, this 
grant of authority applies retroactively to the date of signing.


3. If the applicant is awarded a grant, the Grant Application Electronic Authorization, signed by the above Official, 
will become the applicant/grantee’s executed signature page for the Grant Agreement, and the applicant/grantee 
will be bound by the Grant Agreement.


4. Any amendment to the Grant Agreement may be signed on behalf of the grantee by the Official who, at the time 
of signing of the amendment, has the "TITLE" specified in paragraph 1 and the grantee will be bound by the 
amendment.


I hereby certify that this Resolution was adopted by the


(identify the governing body of the applicant, e.g. city council, borough council, board of supervisors, board of directors)


of this applicant, this __________ day of _______________________, ___________ .


(signature of the governing body)








 


 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP GROUNDWATER 


AWARENESS WEEK PROCLAMATION 


 
Whereas, groundwater, and the subsurface water that fills cracks and solution openings 


in the bedrock, is a valuable natural resource, making up about ninety percent of the 


world’s fresh water, excluding polar ice caps; and 


 


Whereas, groundwater is a renewable resource that is replenished naturally by 


precipitation; and 


 


Whereas, the residents of Ferguson Township use more than one million gallons of 


groundwater each day; and 


 


Whereas, the residents and businesses in Ferguson Township are almost entirely 


dependent on groundwater for their potable water supply; and 


 


Whereas, public and private water wells tapping groundwater resources often can 


provide the highest quality water available to homeowners and businesses; and 


 


Whereas, groundwater comprises more than eighty-five percent of the water flowing in 


Slab Cabin Run and its tributaries each year, thereby providing an outstanding aquatic 


habitat; and 


 


Whereas, groundwater is the most extracted natural resource in Ferguson Township; and 


 


Whereas, the groundwater that is source water in Ferguson Township is protected by the 


Township’s Source Water Protection Overlay District ordinance. 


 


Now, therefore, be it proclaimed, that the week of March 8th through March 14th is 


hereby designated as Groundwater Awareness Week in Ferguson Township in 


conjunction with the celebration of National Groundwater Awareness Week. 


 


PROCLAIMED this 2nd day of March 2020. 


 


Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors, 


 


 


 


_________________________________ 


Steve Miller, Chairman 








 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


  


N.J. Hess Associates LLC presents 


A Proposal to Conduct an 
Organization Study 
For Ferguson Township                                              
Centre County, Pennsylvania 


Nancy J Hess, Principal 


January 24, 2020 


 


1106 Galway Court 


Hummelstown, Pennsylvania 17036 


(717) 566-6115 


www.njhessassociates.com 


 


 


 



http://www.njhessassociates.com/





Contents 
 


PROPOSAL ABSTRACT ..................................................................................................................... 0 


GOALS: ............................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 


OBJECTIVES: ................................................................................................................................. 0 


ABOUT N.J. HESS ASSOCIATES ........................................................................................................ 1 


DISCUSSION ..................................................................................................................................... 2 


More information about project approach: .................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 


Market Pay ...................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 


Ongoing Administration and Update .............................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 


Benefits Analysis ............................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 


METHODOLOGY FOR MARKET STUDY ............................................................................................ 3 


PROJECT COSTS ............................................................................................................................... 6 


Compensation Study [includes basic benefit coverage questions] .............................................. 6 


Benefits Study Add-on [includes in-depth cost of benefits] ........... Error! Bookmark not defined. 


Additional costs: .......................................................................................................................... 6 


SELECTED REFERENCES ................................................................................................................... 7 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 


PROPOSAL ABSTRACT 
 
N.J. Hess Associates proposes to conduct an organization study for Ferguson Township to include 


several key building blocks to an HR System. Specifically, the study will accomplish the following 


objectives: 


 Analyze the relationship of current pay to the market;  


 Examine organization structure and job design to determine how to best support 


organization performance; 


 Develop benefit offerings to create strategic advantage in recruitment and retention.  


 


In support of these objectives the project will include several goals to include: 


GOALS: 


GOAL ONE: SURVEY MARKET Conduct survey to determine market pay for 
current jobs 


Include target questions on benefit offerings


GOAL TWO: ANALYZE KEY 
MANAGEMENT JOBS 


Gather job analysis information to examine current roles, tasks and 
responsibilities.


Prepare findings and recommendations to plan for current/future 
workforce.


GOAL THREE:  DEVELOP 
STRATEGIC BENEFIT 
OFFERINGS


Utilize survey data and best practice research to map out various 
benefit offerings.


Facilitate dialogue with selected stakeholders to flesh out desired 
policy initiatives and language.


GOAL FOUR: 
COMMUNICATE FINDINGS 
AND INITIATIVES


Provide continuing support through avenues of facilitation, research, 
policy writing and consultation to assist with implementation. 







1 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


 


 


ABOUT N.J. HESS ASSOCIATES 
 
NJ Hess Associates helps organizations design and implement effective HR strategies that 
value engagement and whole system approaches to work and community. 
 


Nancy J Hess, HR Strategist, has been designing and developing 


human resource systems for organizations for over 30 years in 


the private, non-profit and public sectors.  Nancy provides 


expertise and coaches managers in the strategic use of HR 


interventions and helps leaders to build effective compensation 


programs, competency models and performance systems.  Her 


distinctive competency is tapping into the internal strengths of 


an organization, partnering with clients to engage people in the 


process of change and helping leaders to design and implement 


effective strategies to support high performance workplaces.  


In addition to her consulting work, she was part of the adjunct 


faculty in the Department of Management at Bloomsburg 


University for over ten years where she taught Strategic 


Compensation, Human Resource Management, Labor Relations and Organization Behavior 


courses in the School of Business.  She is a speaker at conferences and conducts workshops on 


various human resource and organization development topics such as building better employee 


engagement and linking pay and performance. 


 


Prior to starting her own practice, Nancy was a Senior Consultant in a midwest consulting firm 


where she conducted management audits, researched employment and labor relation issues and 


represented clients at the State Labor Board.  


 


Nancy completed her Masters in Management, Labor and Human Resources at the Ohio State 


University and her Bachelors in Psychology and Dance Therapy at Goucher College in Baltimore 


Maryland. 


 


 







2 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


 


DISCUSSION  
 
Ferguson Township is not unlike other organizations that are challenged with the need to stay on 


top of labor market information and make good decisions regarding pay policy that not only 


address employee concerns but help the organization plan for the future. 


This project addresses the need to examine the current relationship of Township pay to the 


market and make some adjustments to the pay schedule as well as review current policies and 


practices to make sure they are in line with where the organization is headed.  In addition, the 


survey will gather data on targeted areas of benefits to provide perspective on current benefit 


practices. 


Both the pay and benefits data will be examined in light of Township priorities and serve to build 


the appropriate framework for looking at three important areas: 


1. What type of market adjustments are appropriate for current Township positions? 


2. How well does the current pay structure communicate the desired message regarding 


pay expectations for Township jobs? 


3. Are there are areas of benefit offerings, perhaps less tangible, that would make the 


Township a desirable place to work for harder to attract employees and if so, what are 


the ways in which the Township can make these benefits better known? 


Finally, this project will take a close look at how management level jobs are structured within the 


organization, current demands and desired efficiencies and where the Township is likely to be in 


5 – 10 years in terms of challenges and opportunities. The consultant will analyze the current 


structure and provide guidance to facilitate deeper discussions about what will best support the 


Township’s aim to be a high performing workplace. 


More information about market survey approach: 


Attracting good hires requires solid market data.  The question “where do we hire people from 


and who do we lose people to” will guide the discussion of appropriate market parameters. The 


consultant has been surveying the local government for decades that will be important for 


getting good reliable information and relevant job matches. Regional and statewide data are 


relevant where recruitment often extends to other areas. The consultant will survey comparable 


organizations and access additional public and private databases to identify primary (most 


relevant) and secondary (supporting) market data. 







3 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


Also, the market pay study will include a targeted benefits questions, such as work life balance 


questions and the amount budgeted for benefits to determine what portion of overall 


compensation costs go to benefits  


As the Township continues to evolve, the evaluation of market data will become an increasingly 


important tool to attract and retain the best talent as well as to communicate fiscally sound 


decisions regarding pay and benefit packages, i.e., total compensation. While compensation 


studies can create concern among organization members (Am I getting paid too much? What are 


they planning to do?) it is more often an opportunity to improve the ability of management to 


communicate pay policy and convey a sense of fairness and integrity in pay decisions.  


NJ Hess Associates has been a consultant to cities, counties, local government and authorities 


since 1990 and has interviewed many employees and worked with management teams which 


oversee all types of local government services.  


METHODOLOGY FOR MARKET STUDY 
 


1. Project planning; the consultant will meet with management to gather information and 


plan for project work. Specifically, the consultant will discuss client goals, concerns and 


urgent issues, the design and methodology of the survey, invited participants and 


methods of communication and project schedule. (~2 hrs) 


2. Survey Design: based on the discussions with the client, the consultant will develop an 


updated customized electronically delivered survey and participant list and present a 


final draft of the tool for review and comment. (~8 hrs) 


This survey will include: 


• Pay data on benchmark job positions to include pay ranges, current pay, length of 
service, required education and certifications, salary vs non-exempt; supervision. 


• Questions that help to clarify role and scope of job responsibility (for example, scope 
of public works services, level of responsibility for administrative assistant, 
clarification of codes, zoning, planning titles, etc.)  


• Questions relative to general and performance increases; 


• Budget planning data such as salary budgets; 


• Benefits questions, if opted for inclusion in study (see p. 3) 







4 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


3. Survey Distribution and Follow Up; over a period of 2 – 4 weeks, the consultant will 


monitor feedback and conduct follow-up to encourage survey participation, to include 


email and telephone contact.  (~16 hrs) 


4. Compilation of Data and Analysis of Findings; the consultant will compile the results of 


the survey and prepare a summary and analysis of the findings. The hours proposed for 


this step anticipate responses from approximately 15 - 20 participants (up to 30 - 40 


actually invited).  The consultants will also utilize supplemental data compiled by the 


consultant on other projects, and industry and association surveys, as provided by the 


client. (~40 hrs) 


5. Interim Meeting; the consultant will meet with the client to review the preliminary 


results of survey and determine what areas of the data may require additional analysis 


and interpretation. The consultants will discuss the status of the project and discuss any 


special concerns or challenges. (~2 hrs) 


6. Develop Pay Schedule and Compensation Policy; based on input and discussions with the 


client, the consultant will prepare pay schedule, compensation policy language to reflect 


recommended changes and recommendations for adjustments based on individual 


placement in schedule. (~6 hrs) 


 


7. Final Meeting (s); the consultant will meet to review and discuss a final presentation of 


the findings and recommendations with management, the Board and employees.           


(~2 hrs) 


TOTAL HOURS:  76 hours 


ESTIMATED TIME FRAME:  60 – 90 days  


METHODOLOGY FOR ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE / JOB ANALYSIS 
 
1. Gather information; utilize interview, job questionnaire and facilitated discussion 


approaches, as appropriate, to gain an understanding of current organization structure, 
needs, and priorities going forward. 


2. Develop recommendations including an outline of next steps to assist the organization in 
moving closer to organization goals. 


3. Revise job descriptions, where indicated, to reflect recommendations. 
4. Assist with facilitation of dialogue, as needed, between stakeholders. 
 
TOTAL HOURS:  20 hours 


ESTIMATED TIME FRAME:  30 - 60 days (allows time for reflection and consideration of ideas)  







5 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


METHODOLOGY FOR BENEFITS INITIATIVES 
 
1. Draw upon information gathered during survey process, research of best practices and 


input from management to create a visual map of benefit initiatives that will differentiate 
Township and create a positive work experience.  


2. Facilitate discussion of various approaches, as appropriate, to gain an understanding of 
Township intentions and priorities going forward. 


3. Develop recommendations including an outline of next steps to assist the organization in 
moving closer to organization goals. 


4. Draft policy language, where indicated, to reflect recommendations. 
5. Assist with implementation through ongoing support and communication. 
 
TOTAL HOURS:  20 hours 


ESTIMATED TIME FRAME:  30 - 60 days (allows time for reflection and consideration of ideas)  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  







6 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


PROJECT COSTS 
 
 


Compensation Study [includes target benefit questions] 


76 hours @$125/hr...........................................................................…………….…$9500.00* 


Organization / Job Analysis 


20 hours @$125/hr........................................................................................…$2,500.00* 


Benefits Initiatives 


20 hours @$125/hr........................................................................................…$2,500.00* 


 


Additional costs: 


 


Virtual meeting: The client may opt to conduct meetings via phone conference, Zoom or Skype.  


On-site meetings will include additional expenses of .55 per mile from Hummelstown, 


Pennsylvania. Overnight expenses will occur at the rate of $175 per diem if early morning or 


evening meetings are requested. 


Additional work outside the scope of this project proposal will be billed at $125 per hour or will 


be addressed under a separate proposal.   


Project work is billed two weeks after the initial commencement of work and on a monthly basis 


thereafter with payment expected within 30 days. 


All consulting services must be authorized before work begins. A letter stating that the proposal 


has been approved and the date the work is to begin should be submitted. The consultant will 


consider additional contracting language as requested by the client. 


 


 


 







7 | N . J .  H e s s  A s s o c i a t e s  •  1 / 2 4 / 2 0 2 0  
 


SELECTED REFERENCES 
 


 Dawn Lane, Township Manager, Moon Township, Allegheny County. (412) 262-1700 


• Pay and Benefits Survey 
 


 Jim Steff, Centre Region Council of Governments, Centre County. (814) 231-3078 


• Personnel Policy Manual 
 


 John Ernst, Manager, Lansdale Borough, Montgomery County. (267) 718-3882 


• HR System development including job analysis, compensation, performance, and 
management development including 360 feedback systems. 
 


 Cindy A. Schweitzer, Township Manager/Secretary, East Hempfield Township (717-898-
3100) 


• Compensation studies, personnel policies, job descriptions 
 


 Fred Bean, Vice President, The Benecon Group (Former Borough Manager of Carlisle) 
(717) 385-5319 


• Performance-based compensation, employee surveys, compensation surveys 


 Dave Kratzer, Township Manager, Susquehanna Township, Dauphin County (717) 545-


4751 


• Job Analysis, job evaluation, compensation, personnel policy and performance 


evaluation 


 
 Dan Zimmerman, Manager, Warwick Township, Lancaster County (717) 627-0230 


• Personnel policy development, succession planning, general HR consulting 


services 


 


 Marita Kelly, Deputy Executive Director, Governor’s Center for Local Govt, (717) 720-


7301 


• General consulting services for municipalities in Early Intervention Programs 


 








§ 27-215. Workforce Housing. [Added by Ord. 1012, 4/4/2016]


1. Intent. It is the intent of these regulations to:


A. Provide a wide range of quality, affordable housing units for
qualified buyers in the Township;


B. Ensure the continued affordability of established workforce
housing units by creating a development agreement between
the developer and the Township;


C. Provide criteria for workforce housing including, but not
limited to, design, construction, phasing, and location within
a development;


D. Effectively enforce and administer the provisions of the
workforce housing program.


2. Applicability. The provisions of this Section shall apply to any
zoning district within the Township where workforce housing is a
requirement of a proposed development project or if the
developer intends to take advantage of incentives in exchange for
workforce housing in those districts where incentives are
stipulated. Provisions regarding the ratio of workforce housing
units to market-rate units, and incentives related to the
establishment of workforce housing units, may be found in the
applicable zoning district regulations governing the specific
development project.


3. Definitions. As used in this Section, the following terms shall have
the meanings indicated:
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME — The median income for
Centre County as established and defined in the annual schedule
published by the Secretary of the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development.
WORKFORCE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT — A
written agreement duly executed between the applicant for a
development, the Township, and the designated third-party
administrator of the workforce housing program. Said agreement
shall include, at minimum, all of the provisions established in
§ 27-215, Subsection 6.
WORKFORCE HOUSING UNIT — Housing that is affordable for
someone earning between 80% and 120% of the median
household income for Centre County as established by the latest
income guidelines defined in the annual schedule published by
the Secretary of the United States Department of Housing and


:1







Urban Development. Housing shall be deemed affordable
provided that costs of such housing including mortgage,
amortization, taxes, insurance, and condominium or association
fees, if applicable, constitute no more than 30% of such gross
annual household income for a household size that may occupy
the unit in question.


4. Administration and Enforcement.


A. The Board of Supervisors may, at its sole discretion and by
resolution, authorize a third-party administrator of the
workforce housing program. The designated third party shall
have the authority to administer the provisions of the
workforce housing development agreement. The cost of said
administration shall be set by the Township and shall be the
responsibility of the property owner and subsequent property
owners throughout the lifetime of the property in the
affordable housing program.


B. The Township shall have the authority to enforce the
provisions of the workforce housing program. It shall be
incumbent on the developer to ensure compliance with all
aspects of the workforce housing program as prescribed in
this Section.


5. Workforce Housing Requirements. In residential developments
where the provision of workforce housing is required, the
following conditions shall apply:


A. Workforce housing shall not be segregated or clustered
within a development;


B. Workforce housing units shall be like market-rate units with
regard to number of bedrooms, amenities, and access to
amenities, but may be permitted to differ from market-rate
units in a development with regard to interior amenities,
provided that:


(1) These differences, excluding differences related to size
differentials, are not apparent in the general interior and
exterior appearance of the development's units; and


(2) These differences do not include insulation, windows,
heating systems, and other improvements related to the
energy efficiency and standard components of the
development's units;


§ 27-215 § 27-215


:2







C. No more than two adjacent lots shall contain workforce
housing units;


D. No more than four lots along any block width or block length
may contain such units;


E. Principal Place of Residence. Unless purchased by the
Township or transferred to a third party to hold in trust, all
workforce housing units constructed as part of a development
shall be offered for sale to a qualified household to be used as
its principal place of residence;


F. Workforce Housing Development Agreement. No zoning
permit shall be issued to a development in which workforce
housing units are required unless the applicant for
development shall have entered into a workforce housing
development agreement that contains, at minimum, the
provisions established in § 27-215, Subsection 6.


6. Workforce Housing Development Agreement.


A. For developments required by this Section to include
workforce housing units, no zoning permit shall be issued for
said development without having first duly executed a
workforce housing development agreement. Ferguson
Township, the applicant for development, and the
administrator of the workforce housing program established
by this Section shall each be parties to the agreement. The
agreement shall, at minimum, contain the following
provisions:


(1) A statement from the designated administrator of the
workforce housing program that the workforce housing
units are consistent with the definition of workforce
housing units in § 27-215, Subsection 3, above;


(2) The location, zoning designation, and ownership of the
project;


(3) The number and type of workforce housing units that will
be provided and the calculations used to determine the
number of units, including any incentives that were
employed to reduce the requirement of workforce
housing units or additional workforce housing units
provided to reduce or relieve the requirement of another
provision of the Zoning Ordinance, where applicable;


§ 27-215 § 27-215


:3







(4) A description of the development proposed, including the
name of the development project and marketing name, if
different from the name submitted to the Township, and a
site plan or preliminary subdivision or land development
plan of the project;


(5) The exact location of workforce housing units within the
proposed development including lot number;


(6) A schedule, binding on the developer or property owner,
for the construction of the workforce housing units. For
phased developments, a phasing plan for the construction
of the workforce housing units and market-rate units that
is consistent with the preliminary subdivision and land
development plan of the proposed development;


(7) The proposed sale prices and affordability restrictions for
each workforce housing unit and a copy of the applicable
affordability deed restrictions or covenants;


(8) Indication of which, if any, of the workforce housing units
will be special needs housing for seniors, disabled, or
other special needs populations and a description of the
unique features or services for that population;


(9) Indication as to whether the developer or a third party
will be constructing the workforce housing units. If a
third party is to construct the housing units, a separate
development agreement or other binding legal document
between the developer and the third party must be
submitted with the workforce housing development
agreement;


(10) Acknowledgement that the certificates of occupancy for
the last 10% of the market-rate units shall be withheld
until the certificates of occupancy for all of the workforce
housing units have been issued;


(11) Acknowledgement that the designated workforce
housing administrator of the Township's workforce
housing program shall have full authority to administer
the provisions of the workforce housing development
agreement.


B. The workforce housing development agreement shall be
reviewed by the Township Solicitor, and included as a
condition of approval of the subdivision or land development
plan. Revisions to the workforce housing development


§ 27-215 § 27-215


:4







agreement shall be submitted in writing and shall require
approval of the Board of Supervisors. Approved revisions
shall be affixed to the workforce housing development
agreement and recorded as an amendment to the subdivision
or land development plan.


7. Continued Affordability.


A. The continuity of workforce housing units in the workforce
housing program shall be ensured for a period of 99 years
commencing the date of the approved certificate of
occupancy for the unit. To provide for the continuity of
workforce housing units, a restriction shall be placed on the
deed of the property, which shall read as follows: "This
property is to remain affordable for a period of 99 years from
its initial date of sale for persons earning between 80% and
120% of the median household income for Centre County as
established by the latest income guidelines defined in the
annual schedule published by the Secretary of the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development."


B. Prospective buyers shall enter into a legally binding
agreement with the designated administrator of the
workforce housing program that will stipulate the process for
certifying subsequent buyers of affordable housing units for
the applicable ninety-nine-year period, and the amount of
equity able to be recouped by the homeowner upon sale of the
workforce housing unit. The designated administrator of the
workforce housing program shall have the authority to
require additional stipulations in the agreement including,
but not limited to, the requirement of prospective buyers to
participate in financial counseling in accordance with the
procedures and requirements of the designated
administrator.


§ 27-215 § 27-215


:5





		§ 27-215 Workforce Housing.






1


March 2, 2020, Board Member Request - Consent Agenda 


From: "Dininni,Laura" <ldininni@twp.ferguson.pa.us> 
Date: February 27, 2020 at 8:41:00 PM EST 
To: "Pribulka,David" <dpribulka@twp.ferguson.pa.us> 
Cc: "Miller,Steve" <smiller@twp.ferguson.pa.us> 
Subject: Consent agenda item 


Hi Dave, 
I’d like to add the following to the 3/2 consent agenda please: 
Discuss directing staff to send correspondence to State College Borough regarding lay down yard use of former 
Houts lot/s, including a request to implement any possible impact reducing and safety increasing measures 
immediately. 
I'd like to include the "Houts Use Permit" document (attached) as an agenda attachment. 
Thank you, 
Laura 


IMPORTANT WARNING: The information in this message (and the documents attached to it, if any) is confidential and may be legally 
privileged. It is intended solely for the addressee. Access to this message by anyone else is unauthorized. If you are not the intended 
recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken, or omitted to be taken, in reliance on it is prohibited and may be 
unlawful. If you have received this message in error, please delete all electronic copies of this message (and the documents attached to it, 
if any), destroy any hard copies you may have created and notify me immediately by replying to this email. Thank you. 





















		Blank Page










 


FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting 


Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
7:00 PM 


 
I. ATTENDANCE 


The Board of Supervisors held its second regular meeting of the month on Tuesday, 
February 18, 2020, at the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  In attendance were: 
 
Board: Steve Miller, Chairman 


Laura Dininni 
Lisa Strickland 
Patty Stephens 
Prasenjit Mitra 


Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Centrice Martin, Assistant to the Manager 
Dave Modricker, Public Works Director 
Jenna Wargo, Planning/Zoning Director 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police 
 


Others in attendance included:  Faith Norris, Recording Secretary; Doug Erickson, Patton Township 
Manager; Susan Werner, Schlow Library; Betsy Boyer, Al Jones, Centre Crest board members; Beth 
Van Horn; Christine Bailey; Wesley Glebe; Beth Van Horn; David Salva; Pam Salokangas; Susan Toby 
Evans; David Webster; Terence O’Heron; Dorothy Blair; Deborah Guise; Joshua Potter. 
 


II. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Miller called the Tuesday, February 18, 2020, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 


III. CITIZENS INPUT  
 
Two citizens voiced their concerns regarding the noise coming from the Start Lab near the Stonebridge 
neighborhood and continued noise in the evenings from the same building on Research Drive.  Mr. 
Pribulka responded to the efforts that the Township has taken to enforce its noise ordinance and the 
property owner’s plans to install further noise mitigation. 
 


IV. SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
a. Schlow Library.  Ms. Werner reviewed strategies for services and the development plan for 2020-


2024.  History, events and funding opportunities of the library were reviewed along with a new 
strategic plan anticipated by this fall.  Ms. Werner offered to anyone interested, to visit the library 
for a tour.  Go to Schlowlibrary.org for upcoming events. 


 
b. Patton Township Open Space Preservation Presentation on ABC Essentials.  Mr. Erickson started 


the presentation by stating Patton Township is tree-centered and it shows in the names of its 
neighborhoods.  He reviewed the program’s grass-root efforts that initiated with its residents that 
now has an Open Space Stewardship Committee meeting four or more times a year doing oversight 
on open space properties in Patton Township.  A third-party ecologist does studies yearly to 
determine goal setting. 
 
Discussion followed on stewardship of the Open Space Plan; Patton properties; and the standing 
stewardship committee vs. ad hoc committees.    


 
c. Centre Crest.  Ms. Boyer reviewed the changes in Centre Crest.  This included the funding source 


that changed from the county to a newly-created non-profit eight-member appointed board that 
took ownership of the facility in late 2013 to get the facility back in financial order.  With the facility 
being over 80 years old, new land was purchased a new facility is being built to meet the community 
needs moving forward.  Ms. Boyer discussed the details of the new skilled nursing facility that 
hopefully will be opened this time next year.  It will be called Centre Care.  She explained there are 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 2 


more stringent regulations for skilled nursing facilities then assisted living facilities.  Some new 
enhanced services include in-house dialysis and a high acuity unit; additional rooms; and multiple 
dining areas just to name a few upgrades.  This facility adds an opportunity for employment.  In 
order to raise the funds for the $45M non-profit 501(c)(3) facility, the Centre Crest board is providing 
information to the public through these meetings and asking local municipalities to assist with the 
grass root efforts for matching funds.  Noted, no tax dollars are going to this facility.   
 
Mr. Jones discussed the funding structure that included the U.S. Department of Agriculture and 
over 50 donors that included a significant donation from the Hamer Foundation with a match 
opportunity through the end of April 2020. 
 
The speakers were thanked for their leadership and all that’s been accomplished.  Discussion 
followed on the services.  Mr. Pribulka stated he can reach out to the executive director to receive 
material to share on the Township’s web page. 
 


V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.  


Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Board of Supervisors Minutes of 
February 3, 2020, with one correction to add her in attendance.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  
The motion as amended passed unanimously.  
 


VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 


1. PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CODE OF ORDIANCES CHAPTER 15 
MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC PART 2. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for adoption.  Two noted changes included modifications of the 
school zone times and parking prohibitions on Rushcliffe Street that was requested by the 
residents.   
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance amending Chapter 15, Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic of the Code of Ordinances as described in the advertised ordinance for public 
hearing.  Ms. Strickland seconded the motion.  
 
A resident of Rushcliffe Street voiced his concern on the parking determination; only being allowed 
two parking permits per resident and that he was not informed.  Mr. Pribulka reviewed the residents’ 
concerns, what options the residents favored, the meetings that residents attended to discuss the 
item.  In response to the resident’s questions, Mr. Miller noted residents had many opportunities 
for input at the meetings and that it is up to the Board to approve the reduced parking.  Mr. Pribulka 
noted the street is currently functioning as designed.  The Board and staff further discussed the 
parking permit allowance.  Ms. Dininni responded to the resident by requesting him to work with 
his HOA for determination on the solution.   
 
Roll Call vote on Ordinance #1052: Ms. Dininni – YES; Mr. Miller – YES; Mr. Mitra – YES; Ms. 
Stephens – YES; Ms. Strickland – YES. 
 


2. PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION AMENDING 2020 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET. 
  
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for adoption.  The intent was to free up additional Capital Reserve 
funds to complete the design and engineering of the Park Hills Drainageway Project as well as to 
account for the contingency for the construction management services of the new Public Works 
Maintenance Facility.  Noted with this amendment was deferment of acquisition of a bucket truck 
until 2021. 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 3 


 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution amending the 2020 
Operating Budget.  Mr. Mitra seconded the motion.  
 
Roll Call vote on #2020-08 Mr. Miller – YES; Mr. Mitra - YES; Ms. Stephens - YES; Ms. Strickland 
– YES; Ms. Dininni – YES. 
 


3. REVIEW DRAFT ORDINANCE ADMENIDNG CHAPETER 1 ADMINISTRATION AND 
GOVERNMENT IMPLEMENTING PINE GROVE MILLS SMALL AREA PLAN. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for authorization as provided with the agenda.  The action requested 
for tonight was to authorize this item for public hearing at the March 16th Regular Meeting.  
Discussion followed on the number of members to appoint and what constitutes a quorum.  Board 
consensus was to start with five members. 
 
Mr. Mitra moved that the Board of Supervisors authorize advertisement of a public hearing 
amending Chapter One of the Ferguson Township Code of Ordinances by establishing a Standing 
Committee for the implementation of the Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan for Monday, March 16th.  
Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 


Mr. Miller called for a brief recess. 
 


VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 


1. CONSENT AGENDA 


a. Board Member Request – Employer Paid Sick Leave 
 
Mr. Miller noted the action was to decide whether to place this item on a future agenda for 
discussion. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda.  Ms. Strickland 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 


2. PUBLIC HEARING RESOLUTION APPOINTING ACTING MANAGER IN MANAGER’S 
ABSENCE. 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the item for adoption as provided with the agenda.  This was last done in 
2017 and needed updated accordingly. 
 
No public comments were noted. 
 
Ms. Strickland moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Township 
Manager to appoint an Acting Manager during his absence in accordance with the Administrative 
Code, Chapter 1; Part 2, Section 207, Acting Manager and repealing Resolution 2017-22.  Ms. 
Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Roll Call vote on Resolution #2020-09:  Mr. Mitra - YES; Ms. Stephens; Ms. Strickland; Ms. Dininni 
- YES; Mr. Miller – YES. 
 


3. CENTRE REGION COMP PARKS REC AND OPEN SPACE STUDY MUNICIPAL COMMENTS. 
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 4 


Messrs. Miller and Pribulka reviewed the item as provided with the agenda.  Ms. Salokangas was 
in attendance to answer questions.  Action items were reviewed and commented on.  The Board 
reviewed the document and provided its comments on each component.  Following the discussion, 
Board consensus was to bring this topic back as an agenda item for discussion at its March 2nd 
Regular Meeting.  Ms. Salokangas noted that the Authority anticipates approving their resolution at 
their March 19th meeting followed by the General Forum anticipated approval on March 24th.  In 
response to Ms. Strickland’s question, the Township’s Parks and Recreation Committee will be 
discussing this topic at its next meeting on Thursday, February 20th. 
 


4. TERRACED STREETSCAPE DISTRICT (TSD) ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
DISCUSSION. 


 
Ms. Wargo reviewed the item provided with the agenda.  The action requested at this meeting was 
for the Board to discuss and determine whether to cancel the agreement with Environmental 
Planning and Design (EPD).   The intended goals moving forward were presented and discussed.  
Discussion followed on redefining boundaries; completion of a Small Area Plan in the corridor; 
prioritizing coordination with other parties; and suggested zoning changes.  For clarification, a 
detailed review of the TSD followed for new Board members.  Another discussion followed on 
adaptive reuse; demographics in the area; and stakeholders.  Following discussion, the consensus 
was to issue a Request for Proposals with the stated goals including both a traditional and form-
based modification. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors cancel the agreement with Environmental 
Planning & Design for the Terraced Streetscape District zoning ordinance amendment.  Ms. 
Strickland seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 


5. APPOINTMENTS TO FERGUSON TOWNSHIP AUTHORITIES, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS 
(ABC’s). 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the candidate applications.  One application for an alternate position on the 
Planning Commission was not provided with the agenda that will be shared with the Board.  
Discussion followed on the applicant interview process.  Interviews will be scheduled for one 
position that Ms. Dininni will chair.  Mr. Miller recused himself from the process due to his applying 
for one of the vacancies.  Mr. Pribulka will send out a Doodle Pool for available dates.   
 


VIII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 


1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS 


a. Facilities Ad Hoc Committee.  Ms. Stephens reported on the update to the Millbrook Marsh 
boardwalk that will have an upcoming feasibility study; and alternatives to the Code Renovation 
Project at COG.  Ms. Dininni commented on trash haulers loads and impact to roads. 
 


b. Public Safety Committee.  Ms. Dininni reported on points of interest on code Board of Appeals 
appointment update; software study is underway for Code permitting – the two companies are 
coordinating with the municipalities to review the software; and update on advertisement on the 
part-time deputy emergency management coordinator position – applications are due March 
20th. 
 


c. Finance Committee.  Ms. Dininni noted a reminder on taking the committee picture; the next 
meeting date was changed from the 12th to March 5th to allow for a representative to report on 
the regional parks loan; discussion on irrigation system at Whitehall Road Regional Park; 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 5 


supported Code Renovation Project; and 4th Quarter Financial update that will be shared with 
the Board.  


 
d. Executive Committee.  Mr. Miller reported that the agenda’s been set for the General Forum 


meeting that will include the following:  report on road and bridge construction projects for 2020, 
update on 2020 Census; update on Solar Purchase agreement, approval of building renovation 
contract award; budget increase for alternatives to the Code Renovation Project; and 
appointment to the Code of Appeals.  The committee will meet in an executive session this 
Thursday for the new executive director followed by a special meeting, dependent on the 
outcome of the executive session. 
 


2. OTHER REGIONAL REPORTS – None. 
 


3. STAFF REPORTS 


a. Township Manager.  The report was provided with the agenda.  Mr. Pribulka highlighted some 
items that included Industrial & Commercial Authority organizational meeting update and 
welcomed Chris Daher as a new member; and a new part-time recording secretary that will 
start at the March 2nd Regular Meeting.  
 


b. Public Works Director.  The report was provided with the agenda.  Mr. Pribulka reviewed some 
items from the report.  Musser Gap Trail Crossing paint marking update; Public Works 
Maintenance Facility preconstruction meeting update and a ground breaking ceremony in mid-
March; update on Pine Grove Mills assessment on crosswalks; and an email request for speed 
reduction sign in Pine Grove Mills.  Discussion followed on of the location of the speed reduction 
sign and clarification to warrant reduction of speed.  Mr. Pribulka will forward the notes from 
this discussion to the engineering staff to review. 


 
c. Planning & Zoning Director.   Ms. Wargo reviewed the Commission’s discussion on the TSD; 


map amendments that The Village conversation will be revisited when the PGM’s advisory 
committee is in place; and Zoning Hearing Board agenda items.   


 
d. Chief of Police.  Chief Albright reported on the month of January 2020.  Calls for Service (CFS) 


for Part I and II crimes were down for the month; overall CFS were slightly up; incidents of 
significance update; current investigations; and arrest numbers update for last three years and 
victims.  Chief Albright noted that the officer that was injured in the line of duty is back to work, 
no long term damage. 


 
Ms. Dininni thanked the Chief on a recent newsletter article on pet responsibility. 


 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD  


 
a. Ms. Strickland spoke with some students from the elementary environmental club at Ferguson 


Township Elementary on environmental projects for sustainability efforts and will provide comments 
and questions from the students to the Board following this meeting.  The students were very 
receptive and it was a great experience.  Ms. Strickland thanked Ms. Martin and Mr. Pribulka for 
their information on sustainability projects of the Township. 


 
b. Ms. Stephens had a communication sent to her inquiring about the process of citizens input on 


ordinances that she had forwarded to Mr. Pribulka for feedback and comment.  
 







Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 
Page 6 


Discussion followed on normal cracking of the millwork completed at Overlook Heights 
neighborhood and crack sealing or microsurfacing that can be done in the spring.  Mr. Modricker 
will follow-up on this item. 
 
Ms. Dininni reported at the Public Services & Environmental Committee meeting that the trash 
collection time discussion was tabled. 


 
c. Ms. Dininni and Mr. Mitra were contacted by a resident that had ongoing concerns about the 


construction laydown yard in the TSD and the impact that it has had on the neighborhood.  A 
Consent Agenda item will be forthcoming on this item. 


 
X. CALENDAR ITEMS  


 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 


 
With no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Dininni motioned to adjourn the 
meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 11:03 p.m. 
 
Mr. Miller noted an executive session followed this meeting. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 


 
 
David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 







